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Independent Auditors' Report

To the Honorable Board of Selectnen
Town of Ipswicþ Massachusetts

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fun{, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of lpswicþ Masiachusetts
(Town), as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, which collectively comprise the Town's basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements uré th" rãsponsibility of the Town,s
management.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards geneïally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and p"rforrr, the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit

; the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
es used and significant estimates made by management,
;entation. We believe that our audit provides a

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present farly, inall material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the businãss-type activities, each major fund, and the ãggregate
remaining fund information of the Town of Ipswich, Massachusetts, as of Jun e 20,2009 and the respecUrrã
changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the united states of America.

As more fully described in Note 1.5, the Town has restated the beginning net assets of its governmental activities,
business-type activities and water enterprise fund.

As more fully described in Note 12, the Town implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement #45, Accounting and Finøncial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment nenìfts other Than pensions.

In accordance with Gouernment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 30,2009, on
our consideration of the Town's internal control over financial reporting and ån our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliånce and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control orr"i fitrur-,iial reportìng or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Goaeriment Ãuditing
Standards and should be considered in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.



The management's discussion and analysis (located on pages 4 through 14) and the general fund budgetary
comparison information and certain pension hformation (located on pages 67 through 72) are not a required part
of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted
principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information ald express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Town's basic financial statements. The additional information (located on pages 73 through77) is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
additional information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements
taken as a whole.

?¿x,Go8-4,LL.
November 30,2009
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Managemenf s Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended Iune 30, 2009

As management of the Town of lpswich, Massachusetts (Town), we offer readers of these financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the Town's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009.

Einønciøl Highlights

assets). Of this amount fi6,3'1,6,308 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the governmenf s
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

balances totaling $8,184,858, an increase of $550,650 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately
93,462,000 represents unreserved fund balance of the general fund, special revenue funds, and permanent
funds. The nonmajor capital projects fund deficit olû269,007 will be funded by the issuance of long-term
debt in future fiscal vears.

percent of total general fund expenditures and transfers out.

Oaeraieza of the Bøsic Finønciø.I Støtements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to thebasic finøncial statements, which consists
of the following three components:

1,. Government-wide financial statements
2. Fund financial statements
3. Notes to the basic financial statements.

This report also contains required supplementary information and additional information in addition to the basic
financial statements.

Government-wide financial statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Town's
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the Towrfs non-fiduciary assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a
useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Town is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net assets changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes, earned
but unused vacation leave, etc.).
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Managemenf s Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Town that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (gouernmentøI actiaities) from other functions that are
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type øctiaities).
Governmental activities include general government finance, planning and development, public saÍety,
education, public wotks, code enforcement, human services, library and debt service interest. Business-type
activities include water, sewer and municipal light operations.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 1,6-18 ol this report.

Fund financial statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated
for specific activities or objectives. The Town, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to
ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds can be divided into
the following categories and are described below:

'L. Governmental funds
2. Proprietary funds
3. Fiduciary funds

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in
the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements,
governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of expendable resources, as well
as on balances of expendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in
evaluating a governmenf s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better
understand the long-term effect of the governmenfs near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental funds
balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The Town maintains 430 individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances for the General, Affordable Housing (special revenue) and Library Trustees
(permanent) funds, each of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other 427 governmental funds
are combined into a single, aggregated presentation Ittled nonmøjor goaernffiental funds.

The basic governmental funds financial statements can be found on pages 19-24 of this report.

Proprietary funds

The Town maintains one type of proprietary fund.

Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-
wide financial statements. The Town uses enterprise funds to account for its water, sewer and municipal light
operations, all of which are considered to be major funds.

The basic proprietary funds financial statements can be found on pages 25-27 of this report.

Tozan of lpswich, Massøchusetts Re quire d Supplement øry Information



Managemenf s Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended Tune 30, 2009

Fiduciary funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government.
Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those
funds are not available to support the Town s programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is similar to
that used for proprietary funds.

Private-purpose trust funds and agency funds are reported and combined into a single, aggregate presentation in
the fiduciary funds financial statements under the captions "private purpose trust funds" and "agency funds",
respectively

The basic fiduciary funds financial statements can be found on pages 28-29 of this report.

Notes to the basic financial statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements (excluding the Ipswich
Municipal Light Department except for certain information regarding accounts receivable, capital assets and
long-term debt) can be found on pages 30-57 of this report. Separate notes to the financial statements related to
the Ipswich Municipal Light Departrnent can be found on pages 58-66.

Required Supplementary Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required
supplementary information, Presented in this information is the budget comparison for the general fund and
certain pension information, which can be found on pages 67-72 of this report.

Additional Information

This report also contains additional information related to the Ipswich Municipal Light Department. Included in
this information is a comparative statement of net assets, a comparative statement of revenues, expenses and
changes in net assets, a comparative statement of sales of electricity and a comparative statement of operations
and maintenance expenses, which can be found on pages 73-77 of this report.

G o a ernment -W i de F in øn ci øl An øIy s i s

The following tables present current and prior year data on the government-wide financial statements.

Net Assets

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. The
Town's assets exceeded liabilities by $74,587,88'1, at the close of the fiscal year and are summarized as follows:

Tozan of lpsuich, Massachusetts Required Supplement øry lnformøtion



Managemenf s Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Goaernmentøl Actiaities Business-Type Actiaities Totøl

2009 2008" 2009 2008" 2009 2008"

Assets
Currentassets............ $ 11,801,700 $ 11,118,380 g 9,254,710 g 14,069,21,6 g 21,056,410 $ 25,187,596
Noncurrent assets (excluding

capital assets). .. 8,696,860 10,848,415 1,159,952 1.,012,205 9,856,812 11.,860,620

Capital assets (net)..... 62,828,449 63,134,754 32,441,,341, 27,472,846 95,269,790 90,607,600

Total assets.... .. 83,327,009 85,101.,549 42,856,003 42,554,267 126,783,012 127,655,8L6

Liabilities
Current liabilities

(excluding debQ................... L,387,382 1.,536,21.4 2,855,133 3,174,315 4,242,515 4,71.0,529

Noncu¡rent tabilities
(excluding debt)................... 2,627,730 978,881, 555,071, 601.,131. 3,182,801. 1,580,012

current debt.. ... .. . .. ... . 3,383,490 3,036,003 't ,791,,125 894,825 5,174,615 3,930,828
Noncurrent debt. .. . . ... .. ... 28,470,500 30,988,990 10,524,700 11,322,825 38,995,200 42,311,815

Total liabilities.. .. ... ... . .. ... . ... .. 35,869,102 36,540,088 15,726,029 1,5,993,096 51,595,13\ 52,533,1.84

Net Assets

Invested in capital assets

(netofrelateddebQ...,........... 40,585,873 40,864,650 21,290,990 21,,100,090 61.,876,863 6L,964,740

Reshicted...... 4,704,453 3,775,827 1,690,257 1,,940,370 6,394,710 5,71.6,197

Unrestricted... 2,1.67,581. 3,920,984 4,1,48,727 3,520,711, 6,316,308 7,441,695

Totalnetassets.....................$ 47,457,907fi 48,561,,461,fi 27,129,974$ 26,561,171,g 74,587,881 fi 75,722,632

* As restated and more fully described in Note 15

The largest portion of the Town's net assets (83.0%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, construction
in progress, buildings and improvements, machinery, equipment and vehicles, municipal light plant and
infrastructure), less any related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. These capital assets are used to
provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets aÍe not available for future spending. Although the
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to
repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to
liquidate these Habilities.

An additional portion of the Town's net assets (8.6%) represents resources that are subject to external restrictions
on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets (8.4% or $6,3-L6,308) may be used to
meet the Town's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. Of this amount, 92,1,67,58'1, may be used to support
governmental activities and$4,148,727 nay by used to support business-type activities.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Town reports positive balances in all three categories of net assets, both
for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type activities.

Toznn of lpswich, Massachusetts Require d Supplement øry Informøtion



Management's Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Changes in Net Assets

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, the Town's total net assets decreased by fi534,751compared to an increase
of $453,538 in the prior fiscal year. These amounts are summarized as follows:

Goaemmmtal Actiaities Business-Type Actioities Totøl

2008* 2009 2008* 2009 2008*

Revenues

ProgramRnenues:

Charges for services....,.........,.. $ 3,081,260 $
Operating grants and contributions 9,013,414

Capital grants and conhibutions (488,561)

General Reuenues:

Real estate and personal property taxes. . .. . ,. . .. .

Motor vehicle and other excise taxes.. ...,,....... .

Penalties and interest on taxes

Payments in lieu of taxes..

Grants and contributions not restricted

to specific programs..........,...,.

Unreshicted inveshnent income

Gain on disposal of capital assets

Total revenues..

Expenses

General government......

Finance,..........

Planning and development. . ..

Public safety. . ., ,

Education.......,

Public worla....
Code enforcement...................

Human services

Library...,....,...
Debt service - interest. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .

Transfers, net...

Change in net assets........,.......

Net assets - beginning of year (as restated)..... ..... ......

42,214,305 18,288,533 19,349,649 6r,841,372 61,563,954

27,747,868

1,707,t55

110,417

406,020

2,119,\16

727,150

330,000

43,552,839

2,982,074

8,625,766

594,460

24,723,629

7,872,772

71,6,160

404,741

2,291,477

376,332

287,500

18,02t,331

267,202

t9,150,183

199,466

n,702,59t fi n,132,257

9,280,616 8,82s,232

(488,561) se4,460

27,147,868 24,7n,629

1,707,155 7,872,772

110,417 116,1.60

406,020 404,t41

2,118,116 2,291,471.

127,150 316,332

330,000 287,500

974,485

L299,n4
289,4n

5,480,309

29,051.,361

4,129,239

686,284

493,089

795,067

t,447,388

1,,661,823

r,057,061

287,817

5,436,127

26,624,682

4,273,485

590,406

526,701

748,997

1.,366,276

2,060,036

r,303,260

15,233,745

974,485

1.,299,234

289,422

5,480,309

29,051,36L

4,728,239

686,284

493,089

795,067

1,M1,388

2,M3,010

1,318,092

73,976,143

1,66r,823

r,057,061

287,8r7

5,436,127

26,624,682

4,213,485

590,406

526,701,

748,997

1,366,276

2,060,036

r,303,260

15,233,745

2,M3,0t0

1,3t8,092

t3,976,t43

Water enterprise..,.......,.......,..

Sewer enterprise.......... ... ... .....

Municipal light enterprise. . .. . .. . ..

Total expenses.. 44,638,878 42,513,375

Change in net assets before transfers. (1,086,039) (299,070)

(17,575) 15,760

17,737,245 18,597,04L

551,288 752,608

77,515 (15,160)

(283,910) 568,803

26,561,171

62,376,123 61,110,416

(534,751) 453,538

(s34,757) 4s3,s38

75,1n,632 74,669,094

(1,103,s54)

48,561,461 48,W5,371

737,M8

25,823,723

Net assets - end of year..... fi _47,457 W_

* As restated and more fully described in Note 15.

fi 48,561.,461 6 27,129,974 5 26,567,171 5 74,587,88r S 75,1n,632
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Managemenf s Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended ]une 30, 2009

Governmental activities decreased the Town s net assets by $1,103,554. In the prior year, governmental activities
decreased the Town's net assets by $283,910. The key elements of this change are the implementation of GASB
Statement #45 related to other postemployment benefits ($1,599,340), the change in the estimate of capital grants
to be received in future years ($1,454,377), and the 2008 loss on the disposal of land ($780,000) that was non-
recurring in fiscal year 2009.

Business-type activities increased the Town's net assets by $568,803. In the prior year, business-type activities
increased the Town's net assets by fi737,448. The key element of this change is the implementation of GASB
Statement #45 related to other postemployment benefits (91.41.,725).

E und E inønciøI St øt ement An øly sis

As noted earlier, the Town uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental funds

The focus of the governrrrental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of
expendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Town's financing requirements. In particular,
urueserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a governmenfs net resources available for spending at
the end of the fiscal year.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances totaling
$8,184,858, an increase of $550,650 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately 37.4% of this total amount
($3,061,000) represents undesignated fund balance of the general fund, special revenue funds, and permanent
funds. The nonmajor capital projects fund deficit of fi269,007 will be funded by the issuance of long-term debt in
future fiscal years. The remainder of fund balance is designated or reserved to indicate that it is not available for
new spending because it has already been committed to:

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the Town. At the end of the current fiscalyear, undesignated fund
balanceofthegeneralfundtotaled$1,151,000,whiletotalfundbalancewasfi2,799,566. Asameasureofthe
general fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both undesignated fund balance and total fund balance to
total general fund expenditures and transfers out. Undesignated fund balance represents 29% of total general
fund expenditures and transfers out while total fund balance represents 7.2o/o of that same amount.

The balance of the Town's general fund increasedby fi492,262 durtngfiscal year 2009. Although the Town
recognized an approximatefi1,417,000 budgetary surplus (excluding encumbrances and continuing
appropriations), approximately $925,000 of reserves was utilized for spending during ftscalyear 2009.

Tozan of lpszuich, Møssachusetts 10 Re quire d Suppletnent øry lnformøtion



Managemenf s Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended ]une 30, 2009

Financial highlights of the Town's other major governmental funds are as follows:

The fund balance of the affordable housing fund (special revenue) increased by $8,546 during the current fiscal
year. The fund recognized revenues totaling fi27,947, which consisted of receipts from private developers and
contractors ($25,000) and investment income (92,947). Expenditures for the current fiscal year totaled 919,401.

The fund balance of the library trustees fund (permanent) decreased by $55,201 during the current fiscal year.
The fund's investment losses for the year totaled ($43,818). Expenditures for the current fiscal year totaled
$15,038.

Proprietary funds

The Town s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial
statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net assets of the water, sewer and municipal light enterprise funds at the end of the year totaled
9834,732,61,182,413 andfi2,131,,582, respectively. The respective changes in fund net assets for the year totaled
($46,991), $301,650 and93-1.4,1.M. Other factors concerning the finances of these funds have already been
addressed in the discussion of the Town's business-type activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The original general fund budget of fi37,353,760 was increased by fi256,222 (0.7%) during the fiscal year. The
following table summarizes the increase:

Purpose of Increase Funding SourceAmount

Snowandiceexpenditures........ $ 100,000 Taxlevy
School departmentexpenditures.......... 56,315 Undesignated fundbalance
Cemetary and parks expenditures........ 52,000 Tralsfer from sale of lots trust fund
Harbormaster expenditures................ 30,564 Transfer from waterways improvement fund
Recreationexpenditures....,.. .. 1,0,000 Undesignatedfundbalance
Prior year bills. ... .. 4,468 Undesignated fund balance
Treasurer/collector expenditures..... ... . 2,875 Undesignated fund balance

Total increase........ $ 256,222

During the year, general fund revenues and other financing sources exceeded budgetary estimates, and
expenditures and encumbrances and continuing appropriations were less than budgetary estimates, resulting in
an actual increase in fund balance that was less than the final amended budget amount by approximately
$653,000.

Toun of lpszaich, Massachusetts 11 Required Supplementøry Informøtion



Managemenf s Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended fune 30, 2009

CøpitøI Asset and D ebt Administrøtion

Capital assets

The Town's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type activities at the end of the fiscal
year totaled fi95,269,790 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land,
construction in progress, buildings and improvements, machinery, equipment and vehicles and infrastructure
(including municipal light plant). The total increase in the investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year
totaled fi4,662,190, or 5.1,% (a03% decrease for governmental activities and a5.4% increase for business-type
activities).

Major capital asset events that occurred during the current fiscal year include the following:

The following table summarizes the Town's capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):

GoventmantøIActiz¡ities Business-TypeActioities

Ldttu ........,....

Buildings and improvements..... .. .. ... .. . . .

Machinery, equipment and vehicles .. .

Infrastructure (including municipal light plant).. ...

Construction in progress... ...

Total capital assets......

fi 15,534,439

37,583,644
1,401.,965

7,s39,091.

769,310

$ 15,537,404 S

37,829,628
1.,572,1.54

6,852,864

1.,342,7M

2,379,012 $
91,685

290,592
23,O96,387

6,583,665

Brsine s s -Ty p e Actia itie s

2009 2008*

2,379,012 fi
97,079

306,506

23,872,396

877,853

17,913,451.

37,675,329
1,,692,557

30,635,478
7,352,975

95,269,790

fi 17,976,41,6

37,926,707
1,878,660

30,665,260
2,220,557

fi 90,607,600g 62,828,M9 fi 63,134,754 fi 32,Mt,341. g 27,472846 $

Additional information on the Town's capital assets can be found in Note 5 on pages 45-47 of this report.

Long-Term Debt

At the end of the current fiscalyear, total gross bonded debt outstanding was 942,310,200, which is backed by the
full faith and credit of the Towru and is summarized as follows:

G oo emmentøI Actio itie s

2009 2008"

Total

General obligation bonds, net............ $ 30,987,375 $ 33,495,150

Ml4lPAT notes......
$ 11,099,850 $ 41,285,000 $ 44,595,000

1,117,800 1,025,200 1,,117,800

s 12,217,650 $ 42,310,200 $ 45,712,800

fi 10,297,625
-1,025,200

Totalbondsa¡rdnotes........ $ 30W_,3ry_g 33,495,750 511,322,825

* As restated and more fully described in Note 15.

The Town s total gross bonded debt decreased by fi3,402,600 during the current fiscal year.

Additional information on the Town's long-term debt can be found in Note 8 on pages 48-52 of this report.
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Managemenf s Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

E conomic F øctor s øn il N ext Y e al s Bu dgets an d Røte s

The Annual Town Meeting approved the Towrfs Operating Budget for fiscal2010 in the amount of fi13,862,946
and the School's Operating Budget for $19,980,995. Town Meeting approved 92,542,513 for the High
School/Middle School Capital Project debt service for fiscal 2010. The Town's FY 2010 budget was increased by
969,564 to pay for a propert¡z revaluation and harbormaster budget.

The Town's fiscal 2010 budget was increasedby fi71,465, funded by a transfer of fi62,465 from the Capital
Improvements Stabilization Fund and a $9,000 transfer from the Trustees of the Ipswich Library Incentive Grant
to fund the conversion of the heating system at the Library to natural gas and the conversion of the heating
system at the Police Department.

The Water and Sewer budgets for fiscal 2010 were approved at the Annual Town Meeting for a total of fi3,966,693.
Of this total, the Water budget ts 92,403,850, and the Sewer Budget ß g'1.,562,U3. The Water budget will be offset
in part by a water surplus of $23,836. The balance of said appropriations will be met by revenues of each
departunent during fiscal 2010.

The Town appropriated5452,406 as Ipswich's share of the operating and debt service expenses of the \Alhittier
Regional Vocational Technical High School for fiscal2010 which was a5121.,789 decrease over the fiscal2009
assessment.

Town Meeting appropriatedfi2,395,000 to replace water mains on Washington Street and North Main Street and
to fund capital improvements at the Water Treatment Plant. This appropriation is to be funded by the issuance
of serial bonds under Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 44.

Town Meeting appropriated $50,000 from Free Cash to support a series of programs in commemoration of the
375th anniversary of the town.

Town Meeting appropriatedfiS3'1.,523 under the provisions of Chapter 90 of the General Laws.

Under Article 14 of the Annual Town Meeting, 917'1.,231was appropriated for the following: $50,000 for Town
Hall Phase II window replacement;fi36,231. for Bialek Park play structure replacemen! and $85,000 for the
renovation of 90' baseball diamond. With the approval of the Board of Selectmen, this project will be funded by
issuing bonds or serial notes under the provisions of Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 44.

The Special Town Meeting in October 2009 approved the following changes to the Town's Operating Budget for
Fiscal2010 for the following:

1.. 9139,562 decrease in the Town's operating budget for debt service expenditures to bring the budget under
the levy limit caused by State budget cuts;

2. $100,000 increase to the Snow & Ice budget to be funded from the tax lewy;
3. fi55,920 increase from free cash to transfer into the OPEB Special Revenue Fund;
4. $20,000 increase from free cash to the Building Inspector's budget to fund permit tracking software;
5. $28,000 increase from free cash to fund the purchase of a police cruiser;
6. fi20,459 from free cash to fund a state primary and general election for the office of U.S. Senatori
7. $40,000 from free cash to the Reserve Fund to reimburse the fund for the replacement of the police radio

system; and
8. $100,000 from free cash to a special legal account to fund legal action in the Essex Probate Court

regarding Feoffees of the Grammar School.

The $45,000 approved by Town Meeting in May for the police heating system conversion was re-programmed to
repair the roofs at the Linebrook Station, Central Fire Station and Highway Garage.

Tozan of lpswich, Møssøchusetts 13 Required Supplementary Informøtion



Managemenf s Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

The Special Town Meeting approved the sum of fi9,490 from free cash to pay unpaid bills incurred in prior years

and remaining unpaid.

The Schoof s Operating Budget for fiscal 2010 was increased by $85,137 at the Special Town Meeting to be funded
from free cash and athibutable to additional Medicaid revenue received tn2009; and decreased by $112,851 to
bring the budget under the levy limit due to State budget cuts.

The Feoffee's legal issues have not yet been resolved and the annual gift to the Schools has not been reinstated.
The $200,000 loan transferred from free cash to the School several years ago to replace the lost Feoffee's gift has

notyet been paid back to the Town. The amount owed has been reduced to $160,000.

Re qu e st s for Info rm øti on

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town's finances for all those with an
interest in its finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for
additional financial irrformation should be addressed to the Finance Director, Town Hal7,25 Green Street,
Ipswicþ Massachusetts 01938.
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STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

30.2009

Primary Govel'ment

Govemental Business-type
Activities ActivitiesASSETS

Cuûent assets:

Cash and cash equivalents....,,...,,.. ....
Restricted cash and cash equivalents.
lnvestments
Restricted investments.,... .

R<eivables, net of allowance for ùncollætible amounts:
Real estate and personal prope¡ty taxes
Tax and utility lieru
Motor vehicle and othe¡ excise taxes

6,507,287 $

7,158,176

1,463,739
368,577

375,457
408,7M

7M,160

z87L04s $

992,479

13,855

2,095,2s8

6,574

28,421

553,667

97,Ð5
2,437,337

763,079

9,254,770

868,019

9,379,326
2,750,655

1,463,739

364,577

375,457
422,559

104,160

2,095,258

6,574
95,674

'1,320,830

27,589

553,667
ø@q

2,437,337

763,079

27,056,410

Spcíal assessñents
Departmental and other 95,624
Intergovemmenlal...,....... ,,. l,29Z4W

Tax forælosures ZZ,SB9
Prepaid expenses
Deferred charges ...,.
Purchased powe¡ workingcapital. .. .. ..,....

User charges

Inventory

11,801,700Total curent assets........

Noncurrent assets:

Restricted cash and investments 868,019
Ræeivables, net ofallowance for uncollætjble amounts:

Sptrial assessments.

Inte¡ßoverMental

Abandoned property

8,583,760
113,100

76,303,749

46,524,700

77,525,i09

83,32:7,009

442,140

775,657
368,637

109,374

777320
774,266

8ó5,000

2,s78490

4,770,872

57,668

234,265

8,962,6n
23,478,664

33,607,293

42,856,003

1,672,373

71,421

7,0 ,313

58,959

79,067

993,000
798,125

4,óÁ6,2s8

87,741

160000
747,725

777,605

70,524,700

57,668

8,818,025

113,100

25,266,426

70,003,364

705,726,602

726,7A3,072

2,054,573

247,072

1,467,944

709,374

236,279
.133,333

1,858,000

3,376,675

9,477,130

87,741

160,000

7,747,065

7,799,Ð5
38,95,200

67,876,863

7,600,778

89,479
289,002

483,553

113,100

l¡ans...,......
Capital assets not being depræiated.... ....
Capita-[ assets, net of accumulated depræiation..,

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Warrants payable
Accrued payroll
Other liabil¡ties....

Accrued interest
Compensated absences

Short-term notes payable
Long-term bonds and notes payable ......

Total current liabilities....... .

Noncurrent liabilities:
Liab¡lities due depositors....
Enviromental remediation.
NetOPEB obligation.. .. ..
Comperuated absences .,...............
Long-tem bonds and notes payable

Total noncurrent liabilities...........

Total liabilities.

NETASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:

Rate stabiliation...,......
Capital (Depræiation fund) .

Affordâble housing

. 31,098,2i0 17,079,n7 42,778,001

35,869,102 75,726,029 51,591131

40,585,873

1þ99,U0
1,028¡90

28,470,500

27,290,90

7,600,778

89,479
289,002

483,553

113,100

7M,443
626,712

2,447,643

2,767,581

s 47.457.907

Loans.
Permanent funds:

Expendable . .

Nonexpendable.......
Other spæific purposes.. .

Uùestr¡cted

Totâl net assets

Sæ notes to basic financial statements

- 744,443

- 626,712

- 2,M7,643
4,748,727 6316,308

fi 27,"t29,974 $ 74,587,88't
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OO9

Program Revenues

Operating
Chargesfor Grants and
Services Contributions

Net
(Expense)/
RevenueFunctions/Programs

Primary government:
Governmental activities:

General goverrunent,....
Finance...........
Plarming and development.. .. . .. . .. . . . .

Public safety... .

Education........
Public works.. ..
Code enforcement
Human services

Library...........
Debt service - interest.....................

Total governmental activities.......

Business-type activities:
Water.........,...
Sewer.........,...
Municipal light

Total business-type activities.......

Total primary govemment.....

See notes to basic financial statements.

Expenses

s e74A85 g

L,299,2i4
289,422

5,480,309
29,05t,367
4,128,239

686,24
493,089

795,067

7,447,388

M,638,878

533,662

1,1.60

39,470
462,131.

1,470,940
r59,332
30t,892

42,66s
70,068

191818 $

69,785

309,423
7,749,409

20,262

108,283

29,610
53t,424

94,788

6,250
(1.,454,37n

865,378

$ (150,814
(r,298,074)

(L80,82n
(4,702,505)

Q1.,28s,389)
(3,083,26n

(3U,3e2)
(342,r47)

(6es,38e)
(909,964)

3,087,260

2,347,274 37,230-J.,565,126 
54,6'J.6

t4,11,4,931 175,356

78,02r,33t 267,202

$ 2r,702,591. S 9,28A,6'16

9,013,41.4 (488,s61) ffiTiFjær:
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES (Continued)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 3O,2OO9

Primary Government

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities Total

Changes in net assets:

Net (expense)/revenue (from previous page). . . . . .

General rsuenues:

Real estate and personal property taxes
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes.
Penalties and interest on taxes.
Payments in lieu of taxes..........
Grants and contributions not restricted to
specific programs.

Unrestricted investment income
Gain on sale of capital assets

Trønsfers, net

Change in net assets

Net assets - beginning of year (as restated).

Net assets - end of year. fi 47,457,907 $ zz,tzs9z+

17,5'1,5

27,147,868

1,707,155

110,417

406,020

2,118,1L6

127,150

330,000

(1,103,554)

48,561,461

568,803

26,561,,171

3'1.,946,726

(534,751)

75,122,632

fi 74,587,881

17,515

$$

27,147,968

1.,707,155

110,417

406,020

2,11.8,1'1,6

127,750
330,000

31.,929,211
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GOVERNMENTAL zuNDS
BALANCE SFIEET

IUNE 30 2009

ASSETS

Inveshnents..

General
Affordable
Housing

289,467 $

Llbrary
Trustees

Cashandcashequivalents..... ......... $ 3,674,526 $

Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts:
Real estate and personal property taxes.. ...........
Tax liens........
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes.....
Deparhnental and other...........
Tnferonr¡pmmonfal.''-'_Þ'-

375,451

408,704

1,04,1,60

13,652
9,M2,136

27,589
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
lnvestments

TOTAL 4SSETS.................. .......... $ 14,046,21.8 $

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES:
Warrantspayable.......... ........... $
Accrued payroll..................
Other liabilities
Abandoned property.............
Deferred ¡evenue...........,,....

TOTAL LIABILITIES... 11.,246,652 465

176,293

368,517

$ s44,810

373,372 $ -$ -
"155,469 465
368,63"r

1,09,374
"10,239,806

Stabilization....
Perpetual permanent fu¡ds........
Other specific purposes......,...

Unreserved:
Designated for subsequent year's expenditures
Undesignated" reported rn:

General fu¡d... 1,151,000
Special revenue fu¡ds. ... ,... .. tao rìn1

Capital projects funds............
Permanent fu¡ds. 544,810

TOTAL FUND BALANCES.

FUND BALANCES:
Reserved for:

Encumbrances and continuing appropriations
Debt service....

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES.. . . .,. . .......

See notes to basic financial statements.

763,888

483,553

40-1 ,125

2,799,s66

fi 14,046,278 $

289,002

289,467 $

544,810

544,810
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6,507,2&1.

7463,739

375,457

409,7M
704,1.60

95,674
9,876,L69

113,100

27,589

1.,158,176

368,517

42,1,40
775,651,

368,63L
109,374

70,352,906

865,000

12,373,702

763,888

483¡553

669,705

626,772
2,447,643

$ 5,618,065 $ 20,498,560

- 407,125

_ 't,1.51,000

876,794 7,165,796

Q69,044 e6e,004
199ì633 7M,M3
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE FISCAL YEARENDED

REVENUES
Real estate and personal property taxes. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes ... ... ....
Tax liers..
Payments in lieu of taxes.
Charges for services.... ......... ...
Intergovernmental ..,................
Penalties and inte¡est on taxes.....,.........
Licenses and permits.... ,.
Fines and forfeitutes......,..........
Tlanarrmanlel

Conhibutions.

General
Affordable
Housing

Library
Trustees

27,023,852 S

1,696,749

63,t59
406,O20
,q 7q,

8,525,323

t70,417
3U,975
46,502

Ail) q4q

2,947

25,000

27,947

l¿? R1 R\

(40,1.63)

Investment income (loss)

Other

TOTALREVENUES

EXPENDITURES

Current:
General govemment.................
Finance. . . . . . . . . , .

Planning and development....
P,,hlin caf.t'

Education........
Public works....
Code enforcement.. .. .....,.. ... .. .

Human seruices
T ihfân,

Employee benefits.......,...........
Property and liability insurance
Miscellaneous...

State and county charges.... ...... .

Debt service:

Principal......,...
Interest

TOTAL EXPENDITI.TRES. .

TOTAL OTTTER FTNANCTNG SOURCES (USFS)..

FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNINGOF YEAR.

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR.... ... .

See notes to basic financial staternents.

127,750

L12,900

38,962744

289,267

977,812
2\6,198

3,973,725

79,453,836

3,510,318

387,368

356,969

5t4,280
4,232,672

2]4,356
99,523

85&636

2,507,77s

1,460,924

?q fìE? qao

19,401

15,038

11038

EXCESS (DEFICTENCY) OF REVENUES
ovER EXPENDrTURES........... (90,s5s) 8,546 (ss,201)

OTHER FTNA.NCTNG SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 280,632

330,000

(27,s15)

583,117

492,262

Sale of capital assets.

Transfers out

NET CHANGE IN FTIND BALANCES.

2,307,304

8,546

280,456

(5s,201)

600,011

21.

g 2,799,s66 g 289,002 $ s44810
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27,0n,852
L,71,6;r79

63,759
406,020

1,,897,968

74562,644
110417
3U,975

46,502

613,550

298,254
721,536

238,703

858,402
979,0I2
30s,0ss

4Ae0A6s
23,272,743

4s5O00s
389,948

424,357

627,727

4+234612

274,356
oo qt?

858,656

2,547,775

7,460,924

45,245,534

6,533,777 45,483,699

549,135

1,2N
69,456

516,740

3,8L8,907

7,039,687

2580
67,388

92"403

10,000 290,632

- 330,000
(280,632) (308,744

Q70,æ2') 31448s

4\446,437 7,634,2A8

$ 4Þ511480 $ 8,184,858
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RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TOTAL FTIND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30,2009

Total goverrunental fund balances (page 20)...... $ g,1g4,g58

Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) used in govemmental activities are not
financialresources and, ttrerefore, are notreported inthe governmentalfulds......... 62,828,449

Other assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures and,
tlrerefore, are deferred in the governmental funds.... 10,952,906

In the statement of net assets, interest is accrued on outstanding long-term deb!
whereas in the governmental funds interest is not reported until due.. . . . . . (177 ,320\

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and,
tlterefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.

Bonds and notes payable, net of unamortized deferred losses on refundings and premium (30,988,990)
Compensatedabsences....... (1,142,656\
NetOPEB obligation..... (1,599,940)

Net assets of governmental activities (page 16). . . . . . g 47 ,457 ,907

See notes to basic financial statements.
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RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2009

Netchangeinfund balances - total governmentalfunds (page 22)............. ................... $

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation exPense. These amounts represent the related activiç
of the current period.

Capital outlays........
Depreciation

In the statement of activities, only the gain or loss on the sale of capital assets is reported,
whereas in the governmental funds the entire proceeds of the sale are reported as
financial resources. As a resul¡ the change in net assets differs from the change in
fund balance by the net book value of the capital asset sold.....

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources
are fully deferred in the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balances' Therefore, the recognition of revenue for various types of accounts receivable
(i'e., real estate and personal propeftyt motor vehicle excise, etc.) differ between the
two statements. This amount represents the net change in deferred revenue.

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds and leases) provides current financial resources
to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes
the financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transactiorL however, has any
impact on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs,
premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts
are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. These amounts represent the
related activity of the current period.

Bond maturities..............
Amortization of bond premiums...
Amortization of deferred losses on refundings...

In the statement of activities, interest is accrued on outstanding long-term deb!
whereas in the governmental funds interest is not reported until due. This amount
represents the net change in accrued interest payable.............

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.
This amount represents the net change in long-term liabilities:

Compensated absences

Net OPEB obligation

Changesinnetassetsof governmentalactivities(page18)............. ............. $

See notes to basic financial statements.

550,650

L,414,842
(1,699,192)

(2"r,ess)

(2,220,860)

2,507,775

294,218

(2e0,e90)

1.6,308

(ss,010)

(1,599,340)

(1,103,5s4)
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF IUND NET ASSETS

JUNE 30,2009

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Fuds

ASSETS

Cunmt assets:

Cashmdcashequivalents........ ........ . ... $
Restricted cash md cash equivalents........ ......
Receivables, net of aÌlowmce for mcollectible momts:

User charges.......
Utility liens........

LIABILITIES
Cunent liabililies:

Wmmts payable. .........
Accrued payroll
Othe¡liabilities...... .

Accrued interest.,
Comperoated absences.......
Short-temnotespayable.... ......
Long-tem bonds md notes payable...

Total runent liabitries.

Nonment liabilities:
Liabilities due depositots.. ............
Enviromental ¡emediation.......
Net OPEB obligation...............
Comperoated absences.......
Long-tem bonds md notes payable..

Total noncment liabilities

Total liabilities

FUND NET ASSETS
lnvested in capital assets, net of telated debt... .......................
Restricted for:

Rate stabilization
Capital (Depreciation frnd) ...

Umestricted

Total fmd net assets ......... . .... . . ...... . $

See notes to basic finmcial statemenrs.

646,429 $ 1.,032,221

288,488 40,340

Mmicipal
LlCht

$ 1,193,395 $

663,651

1,45'J,,830

553,667

97,995
2,437,337

868,019

1 LÁ9, lCl
38,361

1,093,373
78,575

8,621,

100,000

300,000

3,027,304

8't,747

160,000

80,329

77,588
5,400,000

2,872,045
qq) L7a

2,095,258
13,855

6,574
28,421

553,667
01 00q

2,437,337

1,63,079

9,25+,770

86&019

57,668
234,265

8,962,6n
23,478,664

33,60L,293

42,856,003

1,672,373
77,427

7,093,373

58,959
79,067

993,000

798,725

4,646,258

87,747

16O000
'J,47,725

777,605
70,524,700

11,079,777

Sewer

466,962

8,869

136,587

23,238

18,888

6,900
893,000

248,125

176,466
4,986

6,574
28,421-

7,352
9,822

21,496

3,546

250,000

Prepaid experoes
Defened charges
Purchased power working capital ........
Inventory.

Totalcumtassets... .. .......... 7,410,249 L,2g9,00g 6,5V,954

Nonffient assets:

Restricted cash md cash equivalents . ........
Receivables, net of allowmce for mcollectible amomts:

Special assessments...................... - 5Z,66g
I¡tergovemental - 234,265

Capital assets not being depreciated 2,176,439 963,50Z 5,g22,7g\
Capital assets, net of acmulated depreciation.... 11,5M,665 6,650,339 5,g2g,660

Totalnonffient assets................. 7J,6g],1M 7,g0S,ZZg 12,014,470

Total assets... 75,091,8s2 9,19L787 78,569,364

1,,326,738 292,276

39,876 2].,580
62,099 31.,918

2,266,000 2,858,700

8U,732 "r,182473

__n,3eu22_ s _ J,eeg,373_

2,367,975 2912,198 5,799,658

3,694,653 3,2U,474 8,826,962

L0,562,467 4,807,960 5,920,563

15,726,029

2t,290,990

1,,600,778 7,600,778
89,479 89,479

2,131,582 4,748,727

s 9,742,402 6 27,729,974
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PROPRIETARYzuNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

FOR T}IE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OO9

Business-Tvpe Activities - Enterprise Funds

fi 2,341,274

2,341,,274

1,888,060

M7,800

2,335,860

5,414

$ 1,560,88s

4,241,

1,,565,1,26

91.5,7M

261,,509

1,,177,253

387,873

32,416

22,200

(140,839)

(86,223)

301,650

Municipal
Light

$ 14,092,598

21,896

1.4,174,494

12,9t7,609
945,981,

13,863,590

250,904

175,793

(112,ss1)

63,240

374,1M

$ 17,994,757

26,137

1,8,020,894

15,721,413

1.,65s,290

17,376,703

644,191

32,476

235,223

(360,s42)

(92,903)

551,288

17,51,5

568,803

26,567,177

g 27,129,974

Wate¡ Total
OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for services. .... ........ ..
Other.............

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES..,.

OPERATING Ð(PENSES
Cost of service and ad¡rrinist¡ation....... ........
Depreciation...

TOTAL OPERATING ÐGENSES,....

oPERATTNG TNCOME (LOSS)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Intergovemmental.

lnvestment income.
lnterest expense...... .,..... . .... .

TOTAL NONOPERATING RE\.ENUES (EXPENSES), NET. .. . . ...

rNcoME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS

TRANSFERS

Transfers in. .. . .

CHANGE IN FUND NETASSETS......,,.

FUND NET ASSETS AT BEGTNNTNG OF YEAR (AS RESTATED). . . . . ...

FUND NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR.. . . . ,.

See notes to basic financial statements.

37,230
(1021s0)

(69,920)

(64,506)

Ll ,C tÐ

(46,eel)

7'1,,444,190

6 11,,397,199

31.4,1,M

9,428,258

$ 9,742,402
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FT,OWS

FOR Tl IE FISCAL YEAR ENDED IUNE 30, 2OO9

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers md use¡s..,
Payments to vendors...
Payments to employees...................

NETCASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVMES.

CJ.SH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Trmfe¡s in......

Cj.SH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND REIATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from the issumce of bonds md notes...............
Acquisítíon and corotruction of capital assets....
Pdncipal payments on bonds md notes .............
Inrp¡act avnpnca

NETCASH FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVMES...

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTTVITIES
Inveshnent income

NETCHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS.

CASHAND CASHEQUryALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
(Including restricted amounts totalíng $80,119, $40,340 and 94604103, respectively)..........

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR
(lncluding restricted amomts totaling $288,4188, $4Q340 and $1,531,670 respecriveþ)......... $

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

NONCASH IIWESTING, Câ?ITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Intergovermental debt subsidies (MWPAÐ................. ....... ........... $

See notes to basic finmcial statements

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Municipal
Sewer Light Total

s 2337,056 g 1,594,074 5 74,659,802 $ 78,590,932

(838,974) (s¡15,693) (12,636,966) (74,02'1,633)
(889,410) (380,4e4) (76s,686) (Z03tse0)

608,672 667,887 1,,257,1,50 2,533,709

t /,ctc

893,000

(762,5ss) (91,600)

(248,r2s) (246,700)

(107,708) (110"35e)

(225,388' (M8,6se)

10o000
(5,769,450)

(400,000)

(173,9781

(6,183,4281

17,575

993,000

(6,623,605)

(8e4,825)

(33¿04s)

(6,857,47s)

)\q t72

(4,071,028\

37,230

438,029

22,200

241,428

496,888 831,733

934,917 s 7,072,567 fi

7,475,550 8,803571

2,725,065 $ 4,732,s43

775,793

(4,750,48s)

Operatingincome(loss).................. $ 5,414 $
Adiustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net

cash from operating activities:
Dep¡eciation........
Chmges in assets and liabilities

Utilityliero......
User charges....
Special assessments .. ..... , , , . . . , . . .

387,873 $ 250,904 8 644,791

M7,800

(7,7041

(2,5741

267,509

379

(11,568)

1,,047

21,580

3,699

945,981,

474,553

79,487

6,206
(1,,756,743)

758,645

17,283
31,466

(236,00o)

70,755
80329

1,,655,290

(1,32s)

460,471,

73,907

26,230

19,487

6,206

Q,092,941)
758,645

'J,6,992

31,466
(23ó,000)

70,755

741,725

- 73,907
Intergovemental .... - 26,230
Prepaid experoes..
Inventory..........,.
Warrmts payable \00,SZI (36,769)
Othe¡ liabilities....
Accrued payroll....... . 4,662
Liabilities due depositors..
Enviromental remediation ...
Deferred charges
Net OPEB obligation .................. g9,8]16

Accrued comperoated absences 74,627 2U 78,670

Total adjustrnents. 603,258 280,0f4 7,006,246 1,889,518

NETCASH FROM OPERATNG 4CTrVnES...........,..... S 608,672

- s 58,646 $

s 667,887 g 7,257,750 g 2,533,709

$ 58,646
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARYNET ASSETS

JUNE 30,2009

Private
Purpose Agency

TrustFunds Funds
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents... fi ZZO,8+Z g g21'ggg

LIABILITIES
Warrants payable.,...
Liabilities due depositors.....

7,209

314,189

Total liabilities....,......... 32L,398

NET ASSETS
Held in trust for other purposes...... $ ZZO,B+Z $ -

See notes to basic financial statements.
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FIDUCIARYFUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARYNET ASSETS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Private
Purpose

Trust Funds
ADDITIONS
Net invesbnent income:

Interest...... q t r71+' ItLl f

DEDUCTIONS
Scholarships awarded... 2.500

CHANGE rN NET ASSETS..... (22s)

NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR... 221,076

NETASSETSATENDOFYEAR... .................., $ 220,847

See notes to basic financial statements.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Generøl

The basic financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the standard-
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The significant
accounting policies are described herein.

These notes to the financial statements are segregated between the Ipswich Municipal Light Department of the
Town of Ipswich, Massachusetts (Town) and the remainder of the Town. The notes to the financial statements
specifically related to the Town (except for certain information regarding accounts receivable, capital assets and
long-term debt) can be found on pages 30-57 of this report. The notes to the financial statements related to the
Ipswich Municipal Light Deparbnent can be found on pages 58-66.

B. Reporting Entity

The Town is a municipal corporation that is governed by an elected Board of Selectmen.

For financial reporting purposes, the basic financial statements include all funds, orgatizattons, agencies, boards,
commissions and institutions that are not legally separate from the Town.

The Town has also considered all potential component units for which it is financially accountable as well as

other organizations for which the nature andf or significance of their relationship with the Town are such that
exclusion would cause the Town's basic financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. It has been
determined that there are no component units that require inclusion in the basic financial statements.

C. G oa emment-Wi de ønd Eun d E inønciøl S tatement s

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (statement of net assets and the statement activities) report
information on all non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units. Gaaernmental

øctiaities, which are primarily supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from
business-type actiaities, which are primarily supported by user fees.

Fund Financial Statements

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even
though fiduciary funds are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial
statements. Nonmajor funds are aggregated and displayed in a single column.

Fiduciary funds are reported by fund type.

D. Meøsurement Eocus, Bøsis of Accounting and Bøsis of Presmtøtion

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide and enterprise fund financial statements apply all applicable Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements issued on or prior to November 30,1989, unless those pronouncements
conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded
when the liabilities are incurred. Real estate and personal property taxes are recognized as revenues in the fiscal
year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a function or segment are
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or
segment. Program revenues include the following:

privileges provided by a given function or segment.

or segment.

segment.

Taxes and other items not identifiable as program revenues are reported as general revenues.

Except for charges between the general fund and enterprise funds, the effect of interfund activity has been
eüminated from the government-wide financial statements. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct
costs and program revenues reported for the functions affected.

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental funds financial statements are reported using the flow of current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recognized when susceptible to accmal (i.e., measurable and available). Measurable means the amount of the
transaction can be determined and available means collectible within the current period or soon enough
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is
incurred, except for unmatured interest on general long-term debt which is recognized when due, and certain
compensated absences, claims and judgments which are recognized when the obligations are expected to be
liquidated with current expendable available resources.

Real estate and personal property tax revenues are considered available if they are collected within 60-days after
the end of the fiscal year. Investment income is susceptible to accrual. Other receipts and tax revenues become
measurable and available when the cash is received and are recognized as revenue at that time.

Entitlements and shared revenues are recorded at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria
is met. Expenditure driven grants recognize revenue when the qualifying expenditures are incurred and all other
grant requirements are met.

The following major governmental funds are reported:

T}ae generøI fund is tl:.e primary operating fund. It is used to account for all financial resources, except those
required to be accounted for in another fund.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended lune 30, 2009

The ffirdable housingfundis a special revenue fund (established in accordance with MGL, Chapter 44, Section 53E

7z) used to account for activities related to the creation and preservation of affordable housing for the benefit of
low and moderate income households.

The librøry trustees fund is a permanent fund used to report activities related to funds maintained by the Library
Trustees and are restricted for the Ipswich Public Library.

The nonmajor governmental funds consist of other special revenue, capital projects and permanent funds that are
aggregated and presented in the nonmøjor gouernmental funds column on the governmental funds financial
statements. The following describes the general use of these fund types:

The special reaenue fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than capital projects
funds or permanent funds) that are restricted by law or administrative action to expenditures for specified
pulposes.

The capital projects fund is used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of
major capital facilities (other than those financed by enterprise funds).

The permanent fund is used to account for financial resources that are legally restricted to the extent that only
earnings, and not principal, may be used for purposes that support governmental programs.

Proprietary funds financial statements are reported using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and
use the accrual basis of accounting, whereby revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded
when the liabilities are incurred.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with
the proprietary funds principal ongoing operations. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

The following major proprietary funds are reported:

The wøter enterprise fund is used to account for the water activities.

The stwer enterprise fund is used to account for the sewer activities.

The municipal light enterprise fund is used to account for the municipal light activities.

Fiduciary funds financial statements are reported using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and
use the accrual basis of accounting. Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held in a trustee capacity for
others that cannot be used to support the governmenfs programs.

The following fiduciary fund types are reported:

The pnuate-purpose trust fund is used to account for trust arrangements, other than those properly reported in the
permanent fund, under which principal and investment income exclusively benefits individuals, private
organizations, or other governments.

The agency fund ts used to account for assets held in a custodial capacity. Such assets consist primarily of
performance bonds. Agency funds do not present the results of operations or have a measurement focus.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

E. Cøsh øndlnaestments

Governrrrent-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments with
an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition. Investments are carried at fair value.

F. Accounts Receiaøble

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The recognition of revenue related to accounts receivable reported in the government-wide financial statements
and fund financial statements are reported under the accrual basis of accounting and the modified accrual basis of
accounting, respectively.

Real Estate Taxes, Personal Property Taxes and Tax Liens

Real estate and personal property taxes are levied and based on values assessed on January 1't of every year.
Assessed values are established by the Board of Assessor's for 100% of the estimated fair market value. Taxes are
due on August 1't, November 1't, February 1st and May 1.t and are subject to penalties and interest if they are not
paid by the respective due date.

Real estate tax liens are processed approxirnately one year after the close of the valuation year on delinquent
properties and are recorded as receivables in the fiscal year they are processed.

Motor Vehicle Excise Taxes

Motor vehicle excise taxes are assessed annually for each vehicle registered in the Town and are recorded as

receivables in the fiscal year of the lewy. The Commonwealth is responsible for reporting the number of vehicles
registered and the fair values of those vehicles to the Town. The tax calculation is the fair value of the vehicle
multiplied by $25 per $1,000 of value.

User Charges (Water and Sewer)

User charges are levied monthly based on individual meter readings and are subject to penalties and interest if
they are not paid by the respective due date. Water and sewer liens are processed approximately one year after
the end of the fiscal year and are included as a lien on the property owner's tax bill. Water and sewer charges are
recorded as receivables in the fiscal year of the commitment.

Departmental and Other

Deparûrrental and other receivables primarily consist of amounts due from police and fire details and are
recorded as receivables in the fiscal vear accrued.

Intergovernmental

Various state and federal operating and capital grants are applied for and received annually. For non-
expenditure driven grants, revenue is recognized as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider
have been met. For expenditure driven grants, revenue is recognized when the qualifying expenditures are

incurred and all other grant requirements are met.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended Tune 30, 2009

G. Allowønce for Uncollectible Amounts

The allowance for uncollectible amounts is estimated based on historical trends and specific account analysis for
the following accounts receivable:

The following types of accounts receivable are secured via the lien process and are considered 100% collectible.
Accordingly, an allowance for uncollectible amounts is not reported.

Intergovernmental receivables are considered 100 % collectible.

H. Inaentories

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Inventories are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase. Such inventories are not material in total to the
government-wide and fund financial statements and therefore are not reported.

l. Restricted Assets

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Assets are reported as restricted when limitations on their use change the nature of the availability of the asset.

Such constraints are either externally imposed by creditors, contributors, grantors, or laws of other governments,
or are imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

I. CøpitøI Assets

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Capital assets, which consist olland, construction in progress, buildings and improvements, machinery,
equipment and vehicles, municipal light plant and infrastructure (e.g., roads, water mains, sewer mains, and
similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities column of the government-
wide financial statements.

Capital assets are recorded at historical cost or at estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available.

Donated capital assets are recorded at the estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

All purchases and const¡uction costs in excess of $10,000 are capitahzed at the date of acquisition or construction,

respectively, with expected useful lives of greater than one year.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Capital assets (excluding land and construction in progress) are depreciated on a straight-line basis. The
estimated useful lives of capital assets are as follows:

Capital Asset Type

Estimated
Useful
Life

(in years)

Buildings and improvements.. 40

Machinery and equipment..... 5

Vehicles. 10

Infrastructure............-. 50 -75

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or materially extend asset

lives are not capitalized and are treated as expenses when incurred. Improvements are capitalized.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Capital asset costs are recorded as expenditures in the acquiring fund in the fiscal year of the purchase.

K. Interfund Receiaøbles ønd Pøyøbles

During the course of its operations, hansactions occur between and within funds that may result in amounts
owed between funds.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Transactions of abtyerf seller nature between and within governmental funds are eliminated from the
governmental activities in the statement of net assets. Any residual balances outstanding between the
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the statement of net assets as "internal
balances".

Fund Financial Statements

Transactions of abayerf seller nature between and within funds are not eliminated from the individual fund
statements. Receivables and payables resulting from these transactions are classified as "Due from other funds"
or "Due to other funds" on the balance sheet.

L. InterfundTrønsfers

During the course of its operations, resources are permanentþ reallocated between and within funds.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Transfers between and within governmental funds are eliminated from the governmental activities in the
statement of net assets. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-
type activities are reported in the statement of activities as "Transfers, nef'.

Fund Financial Statements

Transfers between and within funds are not eliminated from the individual fund statements and are reported as

transfers in and transfers out.
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Notes to Basic Firrancial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended june 30, 2009

M. DeferredReaenue

Deferred revenue at the fund financial statement level represents billed receivables that do not meet the available
criterion in accordance with the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Deferred revenue is recognized as revenue in the conversion to the government-wide financial
statements (full accrual).

N. Nef -Assets øndFundEquity

Government-Wide Financial Statements (Net Assets)

Net assets are reported as restricted when amounts are restricted by outside parties for a specific fufure use.

Net assets have been "restricted" for the following:

"Rate stabilizatlott" represents amounts restricted for the purpose of minimizing exposure to rate fluctuations i¡
the municipal light industry. The fund may also be used to help the Municipal Light Department maintain a
competitive position in the marketplace or for other unexpected costs. This amount is also restricted on the
Proprietary Funds Statement of Fund Net Assets.

"Capital (Depreciation fund)" represents amounts restricted pursuant to provisions of the MGL. Cash, in an
amount equivalent to the arurual depreciation expense/ is transferred from unrestricted municipal light funds to
the depreciation fund. Interest earned on the balance of the fund remains in the fund. The depreciation fund
may be used for capital improvements, and upgrades to utitity plant assets, nuclear decommissioning costs, the
costs of contractual commitments, the costs of related debt service and deferred costs and debt service costs
related to such commitments, which the Municipal Light Commissioners (Board) determine are above market
value. This amount is also restricted on the Proprietary Funds Statement of Fund Net Assets.

" Affordable housing" represents amounts restricted for a fund (established in accordance with MGL, Chapter M,
Section 5381/z) used to account for activities related to the creation and preservation of affordable housing for the
benefit of low and moderate income households.

"Debt service" represents amounts accumulated for the fufure payment of long-term debt service costs.

"Loans" represents amounts outstanding from the first time homebuyer program.

"Petmanent funds - expendable" represents amounts held in trust for which the expendifures are restricted by
various trust agreements.

"Petmanent funds - nonexpendable" represents amounts held in trust for which only investment earnings may
be expended.

"Other specific purposes" represents restrictions placed on assets from outside parties.

Fund Financial Statements (Fund Balances)

Fund balances are reserved for amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by
outside parties for a specific future use. Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that
are subject to change.

Fund balances have been "reserved for" the following:
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

"Encumbrances and continuing appropriations" represents amounts obligated under purchase orders, contracts
and other commitments for expenditures that are being carried over to the ensuing fiscal year.

"Debt service" represents amounts accumulated for the future payment of long-term debt service costs.

"3¡¿,þiliz.atron" tepresents amounts accumulated for general andf or capital purposes, which is subject to Town
Meeting approval.

"Perpetual permanent funds" reptesents amounts held in trust for which only investment earnings may be
expended.

"Othet specific purposes" represents restrictions placed on assets from outside parties.

Fund balances have been "designated for" the following:

"Subsequent year's expenditures" reptesents amounts appropriated for the fiscal year 2010 operating budget.

O. Long-termDebt

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Long-term debt is reported as liabilities in the government-wide and proprietary fund statements of net assets.

Material bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the liÉe of the bonds using the straight-
line method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.

Governrnental Fund Financial Statements

The face amount of governmental funds long-term debt is reported as other financing sources when the debt is
issued. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are recognized in the current period. Bond
premiums are reported as other financing sources and bond discounts are reported as other financing uses.

Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual bond proceeds received, are reported as general
government expenditures.

P. Inaestmentlncome

Excluding the permanent funds, investment income derived from major and nonmajor governmental funds is
legally assigned to the general fund unless otherwise directed by Massachusetts General Law (MGL).

Investment income from proprietary funds is retained in the respective proprietary funds.

A. Compensøted Absences

Employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts based on collective bargaining agreements,
state laws and executive policies.

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave are reported as liabilities and expensed as incurred.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave, which will be liquidated with expendable available financial
resources/ are reported as expenditures and fund liabilities upon employee retirements and resignations.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

R. Post Retirement Benefits

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

In addition to providing pension benefits ard as more fully described in Note 12, tkre Town provides health,
dental and life insurance coverage for current and fufure retirees and their spouses.

S. Use of Estimøtes

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates

and assumptiors that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure for contingent assets and

liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements and the reported amounts of the revenues and

expenditures/expenses during the fucal year. Actual results could vary from estimates that were used.

T. Totøl Column

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The total column presented on the government-wide financial statements represents consolidated financial
information.

Fund Financial Statements

The total colum¡ presented on the fund financial statements is presented only to faciltate financial analysis. Data

in this column is not the equivalent of consolidated financial information.

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Budgetøry Informøtion

Municipal Law requires the adoption of a balanced budget that is approved by Town Meeting vote. The Finance

Committee presents an arurual budget to Town Meeting, which includes estimates of revenues and other
financing sources and recommendations of expenditures and other financing uses. Town Meeting adopts the

expenditure budget by majority vote.

Increases or transfers between and within departments subsequent to the approval of the annual budgef requires

majority approval via Special Town Meeting.

The majority of appropriations are non-continuing which lapse at the end of each fiscal year. Others are

continuing appropriations for which the governing body has authorized that an unspent balance from a prior
fiscal year be carried forward and made available for spending in the current fiscal year.

Generally, expenditures may not exceed the level of spending (salaries, expenses and capital) authorized for an

appropriation account. Flowever, the Town is statutorily required to pay debt service, regardless of whether such

amounts are appropriated.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

An annual budget is adopted for the general fund in conformity with the guidelines described above. The
original fiscal year 2009 approved budget for the general fund authorized 937 ,353,760 in appropriations. During
fiscal year 2009, supplemental appropriations totaling 9256,222 were authorized.

The Accountanfs office has the responsibility to ensure that budgetary control is maintained. Budgetary control
is exercised through the accounting system.

The budgetary comparison schedule presented in the accompanying required supplementary information
presents comparisons of the legally adopted budget as amended, with actual results and encumbrances and
continuing appropriations carried forward to the ensuing fiscal year. The originally adopted budget is presented
for purposes of comparison to the final, amended budget,

B. EundDeficits

AtJune 30,2009, the following fund deficits exist:

Fund Amount Funding Source

Open space bond Article #18 4/ 00 ATM... $ 525,000 Issuance of long-term debt
EquipmentbondArticle #135/084TM.... 67,691 Issuanceof long-termdebt
Equipment bond Article #14 4/ 07 ATM... 52,901 Issuance of long-term debt
MBTAgradexingArticle #610/08STM............. 24,905 Issuanceof long-termdebt
State 9L1 grant....,.,.. 24,081 Federal grant

NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The municipal finance laws of the Commonwealth authorize the Town to invest temporariþ idle cash in bank
term deposits and certificates of deposits, and treasury and agency obligations of the United States government,
with maturities of one year or less; U.S. treasury or agency repurchase agreements with maturities of not more
than 90 days; money market accounts; and the state treasurer's investment pool - the Massachusetts Municipal
Depository Trust (MMDT).

The MMDT meets the criteria of an external investment pool and operates in accordance with applicable state
laws and regulations. The Treasurer of the Commonwealth serves as Trustee. The reported value of the pool is
the same as the fair value of pool shares.

A cash and investment pool is maintained that is available for use by all funds with unrestricted cash and
investments. The deposits and investments of permanent funds and private purpose trust funds are held
separately from other Town funds. Certain trust funds have expanded investment powers, including the ability
to invest in equity securities, corporate bonds and other specified investments.

Deposits anil Inaestments of the Town (excluiling funds møintøined by the Librøry Trustees)

Deposits - Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk thaf in the event of a bark failure, the Town's deposits may not be
recovered. The Town s policy is to rely on FDIC and DIF insurance coverage. As of June 30, 2009, $5,089,098 of
the Town's bank balance of $12,415,610 was uninsured and uncollateralized and, therefore, exposed to custodial
credit risk.
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Investments Summary

The Town's investments at June 30, 2009 are presented below. All investments are presented by ìnvestment type,
with debt securities presented by maturity.

Investment Maturities (in Years)

Fair L"*
InvestmentType Value Thanl 1-5 6-1,0

Debt Securities:
U.S.Treasuries........ fi E8,q09 $ - $ - fi 48,469

U.S. Agencies.,...... 678,746 40,275 638,471

Corporate bonds........ 323,837 - 247,570 76,267

Money market mutual funds......... 252,882 252,882

Fixed income securities.. 31'1,533 96,747 214,786

External investment pools.. 779,389 779,389

Total debt securities 2,394,9569 1,169,2939 1,,1,00,827fi 124,736

Other Investments:
Equity securities 68,588

32,566Equity mutual funds.

Total other investments 10'1.,154

Total investments........................ $ 2,496,010

Investments - Interest Rate Risk of Debt Securities

Interest rate risk for debt securities is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt securities will adversely affect
the fair value of an investment. The Town does not have a policy for interest rate risk of debt securities.

Investments - Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the Town will
not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside
party. The Town does not have a policy for custodial credit risk of investments. As of June 30,2009, fi263,997 of
the Towrfs investments of fi2,496,0'1,0 was uninsured, not registered in the name of the Town and exposed to
custodial credit risk as follows:

Investment Type
Fair Held by

Value Counterparty

U.S. Treasuries......... ...... ........ ..... $ 48,469 $ 48,469

U.S. Agencies...... 71.,762 7'J.,762

Corporate bonds... 76,267 76,267

Equrty securities.... 67,499 67,499
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lnvestments - Credit Risk of Debt Securities

Credit risk for debt securities is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to a debt security will not fulfill its
obligations. The Town does not have a policy for credit risk of debt securities. As of |une 30,2009, the credit
quality ratings of the Town's debt securities are as follows:

Quality Ratings *

Fair
Value AAA AA A BBB Unratedhrvestment Tvoe

Corporate bonds.......... fi 323,836 g 29,1.86 fi 77,221. fi tZg,}SZ fi 39,382 $ -
Money market mutual funds......., 252,882 252,882

Fixedincomesecurities............... 311,533 31-1,533

External investrnentpools........... 779,389 779,389

Tota1........... fi 1.,667,640 fi_nf86_fi 77,2n_$ 178,047 fi__39_,382_fi '1.,343,804

* Per the rating scale of Standard and Poor's (a national credit rating organization).

Deposits and Investments - Foreign Currenc]¡ Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that fluctuations in exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment or a deposit. The Town does not have a policy for foreign currency risk. As of June 30,2009, the
Town was not exposed to foreign currency risk.

Investments - Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss athibuted to the magnitude of the Town's investment in a single
issuer. TheTowndoesnothaveapolicyforconcentrationofcreditrisk. AsofJune30,2009,theTown's
investments with a single issuer that represent 5 percent or more of the Town's total investments are as follows:

Percentage
Fair of Total

Issuer Value Investments

5.2%

Deposits ønd Inaestments Møintøined by the Librøry Trustees (Trustees)

Deposits - Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Trustees' deposits may not be
recovered. The Trustees do not have a policy for custodial credit risk of deposits. As of June 30,2009, the
Trustees' bank balance was not exposed to custodial credit risk.

Investments Summary

The Trustees investments at June 30,2009 are presented below. All investments are presented by investment
type, with debt securities presented by maturity.
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Investment Maturities (in Years)
Fair Less

Investment Type Value Than 1 1 - 5

Debt Securities:
U.S. Agencies......... 5 106,304 fi 34,082 $ TZ,ZZZ
Corporate bonds.. 72,643 - 72,649
Money market mutual funds......... 52,790 52,790
Fixed income securities. 741,669 51,669 90,000

Total debt securities 373,406 $ t3g,S+tfi ZU,geS

Other Investments:
Equity securities.. 174,885
Equrty mutual funds.... 47,846
Alternative investments 5,169

Total other investments 167,900

Total investments. .... . ....... ......... .. $ 541.306

Investments - Interest Rate Risk of Debt Securities

Interest rate risk for debt securities is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt securities will adversely affect
the fair value of an investment. The Trustees do not have a pohcy for interest rate risk of debt securities.

Investments - Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk tha! in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the Trustees
will not be able to recovet the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an
outside party. The Trustees do not have a policy for custodial credit risk of investments. As of fune 30,2009,
fi419,001of the Trustee's investments of $541,306 was uninsured, not registered in the name of the Trustees and
exposed to custodial credit risk as follows:

Fair Held by
Investment Type Value Counterparty

U.S. Agencies...... ............... $ 106,304 5 t06,30+
Corporate bonds.. .. 72,643 72,643
Fixed income securities. 120,000 120,000
Eqrity securities.... 114,885 114,885
Alternative investments 5|1.69 5,1.69

Investments - Credit Risk of Debt Securities

Credit risk for debt securities is the risk that an issuer or other counterpart¡r to a debt security will not fulfill its
obligations. The Trustees do not have a policy for credit risk of debt securities. As of June 30,2009, the credit
quality ratings of the Trustees' debt securities are as follows:
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lrvestnentT¡re

Quality Ratings x

Fair
Value AA+ AA Unrated

Corporatebonds........................$ 72,643 $ 5t,033 $ 2'1,,610 $ -
Money market mutual funds........ 52,790 52,790
Fixed income securities. 141,669 1.41.,669

Total...... g 267,102 $ 5t,033 fi_21,610_fi 194,459

* Per the rating scale of Standard ard Poor's (a national credit rating organizatton)

Deposits and Investments - Foreign Currenc)¡ Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that fluctuations in exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investnrent or a deposit. The Trustees do not have a policy for foreign currency risk. As of June 30, 2009, t}ire

Trustees were not exposed to foreign currency risk.

Investments - Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss athibuted to the magnitude of the Trustees investment in a single
issuer. The Trustees do not have a policy for concentration of credit risk. As of June 30,2009, the Trustees
investments with a single issuer that represent 5 percent or more of the Trustees total investments are as follows:

Issuer

Percentage
Fair of Total

Value Inveshents

Ishares&P500lndex... ...... $ 97,897 18.1.%

General Electric Corporation 51,,033 9.4%

EBSB.. TZO,OOO 22.2%
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NOTE 4 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

At June g0,z}}g,receivables for the individual major governmental funds and nonmajor governmental funds and

fiduciary funds in the aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible amounts, are as follows:

Gross
Amourt

g 432,790 $

408,704

206,104

103,101

9,876,769
113,100

375,451,

408,704

104,'1,60

95,674

9,876,L69
113,100

10,973,258

Net
Amount

Allowance
for

Uncollectibles
Net

Amount

Receivables:
Real estate and personal property taxes. ........
Tax liens....
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes. .............
Deparhental and other..
Intergovernmental....
Loans........

Receivables:
Utility Liens.... ........... $

User charges...............
Special assessments

Intergovernmental.,

(57,339)

(101.,9M)

(7,427)

71,139,968 $ (1,66,71.0) $

At ]une 30,2009, receivables for the major enterprise funds consist of the following:

Gross
Amount

Allowance
for

Uncollectibles

13,855

2,15L,912

64,242

262,686

-$
(s6,654)

13,855

2,095,258

64,242

262,686

Total

113,100

fi 257,217

408,704

104,1_60

9,42,136
1L3,100

- 27,589

113,100 g 10,352,906

g 2,492,695 g _(So,æÐ_g _2Æ6M_

Governrnental funds report defened reaenue in connection with receivables and other assets (tax foreclosures) for

revenues that are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. The following

identifies the various components of defened reoenue reported in the governmental funds:

General
Fund

Receivable type:
Real estate and personal property taxes.. fi 257,217 $

Tax and utilrty liens.... 408,704

Motor vehicle and other excise taxes....... 104,'L60

Intergovernmental(stateschoolconstruction),,., 9,442,136

Loans........
Tax foreclosures........'. 27,589

Tota1.......... g 10,239,806 $

Nonmajor
Governmental

Funds
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The Commonwealth has approved school construction assistance. The assistance program, which is administered
by the Massachusetts School Building Authority, provides resources for future debt service of general obligation
school bonds outstanding. During fiscal year 2009, approximately $1,390,000 of such assistance was received.

Approximately $15,288,000 will be received in future fiscal years. Of this amount, approximately $5,846,000
represents reimbursement of long-term interest costs, and approximately fi9,M2,000 represents reimbursement of
approved construction costs. Accordingly, a$9,M2,136 intergovernmental receivable and corresponding deferred
revenue have been reported in the governrrrental funds financial statements. The deferred revenue has been

recognized as revenue in the conversion to the government-wide financial statements.

NOTEs-CAPITALASSETS

Capital asset activity for the fucal year ended June 30, 2009, was as follows:

Beginning
Balance

Governmental Activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land. . . .. .. .. .. . S 15,537,404 $

Construction in progress. .. . .. . 1,,342,704

Increases Decreases

Ending
Balance

Total capital assets not being depreciated. . . . .. . .

Capital assets being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements. .. . .. . .. . . . .

Machinery,equipment and vehicles.. . .. . .. . . .. . . . .. . .. .

Infrastructure.

Total capital assets being depreciated...

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and improvements. .. . .. . .. .. . .

Machinery,equipment and vehicles.. . .. . . .

Infrastructure.

Total accumulated depreciation. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , . . . .

Total capital assets being depreciated, net... .., .........,.,

Total governmental activities capital assets, net.. . . . . .. . .

16,880,108 483,689

483,689

(2,e65)

(1.,057,083)

Q.,060,048)

Q7,128)

1,5,534,439

769,310

1.6,303,749

46,352,497

4,780,152

8,225,177

920,025

199,439

868,772

47,272,516

4,952,463
q nq? q4q

59,357,820 1,988,236 (27,128) 61,31,8,928

(8,522,863)

(3,207,e98)

(1,,372,313)

(73,1,03,174)

46,254,646

(1,1.66,009)

(350,638)

(182,s4s)

(1,699,192)

289,044

g 63,134,754 6 772,733

8,138

(9,688,872)

(3,5s0,498)

(1,5s4,8s8)

8,138 (1,4,794,228)

46,524,700(18,e90)

fi (1,07e,038) g 62,828,44e
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Beginning
Balance lrrcreases Decreases

Ending
Balance

Busine ss-Type Activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
La¡rd............. $

Corutruction in progress. . . ... .

Total capital assets not being depreciated. . .. . . . .

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements. .. .. . . . . .. . .

Machinery,equipment and vehicles.. .. . . ..

Infrasûucture.

Municipal light plant..........

Total capital assets being depreciated.. .. . . . .. .. ..

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements. . . . .. . . .. .. .

Machinery,equipment and vehicles...........
Infrashucture.
Municipal light plant..........

Total accumulated depreciation..............,......

Total capital assets being depreciated, net.................

Total business-type activities capital assets, net. . . . . . .. . ..

2,379,012 $

877,853

-$
5,736,052

-$
(30,240)

2,379,0\2

6,583,665

3,256,865 5,736,052 (30,240) 8,962,677

269,680

741,,955

32,987,612

18,848,443

23,376

77,289

817,308 (353,7s]^)

353,751,

269,680

765,337

33,064,90't

19,312,000

(177,99s)

(474,73e)

(15,292,174)

(13,988,340)

(29,933,248)

23,478,664

52,847,690

(172,601)

(43s,44e)

(1,4,627,s49)

(13,396,11,0)

(28,631,709)

24,215,981

fi 27,472,846

(5,394)

(3e,2e0)

(664,625)

(945,e81)

(7,6ss,290)

(737,317)

917,e73 (353,751) 53,41't,912

fi 4,9e8,73s $ (30,240) g 32,441,,341,
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Activities:
General government .. ,.,.,........ . $

Finance.

Public safety.....
Education...
Public works..

Code enforcement...

Human services......

Library......
Planning and development..........

151,853

72,362

145,664
'1,002,346

30'1,794

2,952

5,'1,46

67,674
9,40'1,

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities.................. $ 1,699,192

Business-Type Activities:
M7,800
261,509

945,98'tElectric

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities................. . $ 'L,655,290

NOTE 6 - INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Interfund transfers for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, arc summarized as follows:

Transfers In:

Transfers Out:
General

Fund

Nonmajor
Governmental

Funds

Water
Enterprise

Fund Total

NonmajorGovernmentalFunds,...,, 280,632
$ 10,000 $ 17,5]5_ $ 27,515

280,632

t1)

(2)

$ 280,632 $ 10,000fi17,515fi308,'1.47

(1) Represents budgeted transfer to the park special revenue fund ($10,000).

of annual debt service principal and interest payments ($12300).
Also represents budgeted transfers

(2) Represents budgeted transfers from capital stabilization (fi197,068), waterways improvement special revenue
fund ($30,564), tourism development and service special revenue fund ($1,000) and sale of lots special revenue
fund ($52,000) to fund the fiscal yeat 2009 operating budget.
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NOTE 7 - SHORT-TERM FINANCING

Short-term debt may be authorized and issued to fund the following:

r Current operating costs prior to the collection of revenues through issuance of revenue anticipation notes
(RAN) or tax anticipation notes (TAN).

¡ Capital project costs and other approved expenditures incurred prior to obtaining permanent financing
through issuance of bond anticipation notes (BAN) or grant anticipation notes (GAN),

Short-term loans are general obligations and carry maturity dates that are limited by statute. Interest
expenditures and expenses for short-term borrowings are accounted for in the general fund and enterprise funds,
respectively.

Details related to the short-term debt activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, is as follows:

Notes Pønble - GoaenunentalEutils

Type Description

Origination Maturity Interest

Date Date Rate (%)

Balance at

June 30, 2008

$ 525,000 $

Increases Decreases

BAN Land Acquisition.............

BAN Land Acquisition.............

BAN DPW/Computer..,..........

BAN Equipment.....................

BAN MBTA Grade Crossing......

6/30/08 6/30/0e 2.60

6/2e/09 1,2/76/0e 7.2s

6/2e/0e 12/1,6/0e 7.2s

6/29/0e 1.2/1.6/0e 1.2s

6/29/09 72/L6/09 1..25

525,000

56,000

250,000

34,000

(s2s,000) $

Balance at

June 30, 2009

525,000

56,000

250,000

34,000

Typ" Description

Origination Maturity Interest

Date Date Rate (%)

$ s2s,000 $ 86s,000

Balance at

June 30, 2008 Increases

$ (52s,000) $ 865,000

Balance at

Decreases

BAN

BAN Water.

Wind Turbine.. 6/2e/0e 1,2/1,6/0e

6/2e/0e 12/76/0e

t-zJ

L.23

- $ 100,000

- 893,000

-$

June 30,2009

100,000

893,000

$-$993,000$-

NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Chapter 44,Sectron 10, of the MGL authorizes indebtedness up to a limit of 5% of the equalized valuation. Debt
issued in accordance with this section of the law is designated as being "inside the debt limit". However, debt
may be authorized in excess of that limit for specific purposes. Such debt, when issued, is designated as being
"outside the debt limit".

During fiscal year 2006, certain general obligation bonds were defeased by placing the proceeds of bonds in an
irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the refunded bonds. Accordingly, the trust
accounf s assets and liabilities for the defeased bonds are not included in the basic financial statements. At June
30,2009, $20,380,000 of bonds outstanding from this advance refunding is considered defeased.
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Details related to the outstanding indebtedness at June 30,2009, and the debt service requirements are as follows:

B onds and N otes P øy øhle - Goaernmentøl Actioities/Goa ernmentøl Funds

Outstanding
Interest atJune 30,

Outstanding
at June 30,

Project

Lilbrary........
Land Acquisition...............
School.........
Whipple School Construction

Land Acquisition...............
Whipple School Design

Open Space Land Acquisition...........
Seawall........
Seawall........
Bridges........

School.........
Fire Department Equipment

Sidewalks.....
Drainage......

School Renovations Winthrop...........,
Fire Station Repairs. . .. . ...

School Renovations..

School Refunding....

Land Acquistion Refunding

School Renovations..

School.........
Bridges. . .. . .. .

Open Space..

Equipment...

Library Remodeling..

Total governmental funds, gross. . .. . .. ,

Unamortized premium......
Deferred loss on refunding.....

Total, net. . .. . .

Rate (%)

395 - 6.25 $

4.60 - 5.75

4.60 - 5.75

3.50 - 4.75

3.50 - 4.75

3.50 - 4.65

235 - 4.00

2.35 -3.40
2.35 -3.40
2.35 -3.40
2.35 - 4.00

2.75 -5.00

2.75 -3.00

2j5 -3.00

2.75 - 5.00

2.75 - 5.00

2.75 -5.00
3.00 - 5.00

3.50 - 5.00

4.00 - 5.00

4.00 - 5.00

4.00 - 4.75

4.00 - 5.00

3.Æ - 5.00

3.25 - 5.00

1,035,000

40,000

2,870,000

2,750,ooo

2,620,000

120,000

515,000

43,750

5,000

20,000

110,000

190,000

63,750

L6,250

180,000

34,000

240,000

20,465,000

205,000

189,400

560,500

40,000

782,500

285,000

115,000

$ (115,000)

(20,000)

(1,395,000)

(225,000)

(190,000)

(10,000)

(41,000)

(21,875)

(5,000)

(5,000)

(11,000)

(95,ooo)

(63,750)

(1.6,250)

(15,000)

(17,000)

(20,000)

(105,000)

(11,400)

(30,500)

(10,000)

(45,000)

(3o,ooo)

(10,000)

(2,507,775)

920,OOO

20,000
'J.,475,000

2,525,000

2,430,000

110,000

474,000

21,875

15,000

99,000

95,000

165,000

17,000

220,000

20,360,000

205,000

178,000

530,000

30,000

737,500

2s5,000

105,000

2008* Issued Redeemed 2009

33,495,150

M1.,328

(436,485)

$ 33,499,993 $

30,987,375

Qe4,nq 147,110

290,990 (145,495)

(¿511,003) $ 30,988,990

* As restated and more fully described in Note 15.
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Debt service (gross) requirements for principal and interest for governmental bonds and notes payable in future
fiscal years are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal

2,516,875 fi
2,M3,000
2,493,000
2,553,000

2,633,000
2,723,000
2,823,000
2,929,000

2,922,000
2,930,000

3,040,000
370,000

230,000

80,000
80,000

80,000
75,000

67,500

Interest Total

2010.............. $
2011...............
2012..............
2013..............
201.4..............
201.5..

2016..

2017..............
201.8. .............
2019..............
2020...
2021......

2022,..

2023..............
2024..............
2025..............
2026..............
2027....

't,330,793

1,,225,100

L,135,823
1,,036,986

925,012
801.,549

668,21,4

528,833
385,978
242,000
107,947

36,559
22,909

15,948

12,646

9,346

5,974

2,827

3,847,668
3,669,100
3,628,823
3,589,986

3,558,012
3,524,549
3,497,21,4

3,456,833

3,307,978
3,172,000

3,'L47,947

406,559

252,809

95,948
92,646

89,346

80,974

70,327

Total.............$ 30,987,375 fi 8,494,3Mfi 39,481,719

Bonds øndNotes Pøyable - Business-Type Actiaities/Enterprise Funds

Interest
Rate

Outstanding
at |une 30,

2008* Issued Redeemed

Outstanding
atJune 30,

2009Project

Sewer 97-19 (M!\ryAÐ......
Electric Meterìng System........
Water............
Sewer............
Computer (GIS)*...........
Sewer Land Acquisition. . ..

Sewer............
Land Acquisition. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. .

Water............

Water1...,....,.
Water 2.... . .. ...

Wastewater 1. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .

Wastewater 2..

Eleckic Sub Station and System Improvements. . .. . .. . . .

Water............

Total............,

* As restated and more fully described in Note 15.

** 51.% funded by the general fund.

Town of lpswich, Møssøchusetts

$ 12,217,6s0 fi - $ (8e4,82s)5 1r,322,825::

Variable $
4,6% -5.0%

350% - 4,25%

3s0% - 4.7s%
2.35% -3.40%
2.35% -3.40%
2.35% - 4.00%
2.35% - 4.007.
2.75% -5.00%
2.75% -5.00%
4.00% -s.00%
4.00% -5,00%
4.00% -5.00%
4,00% -5.00%
3.2s% -4.1,0%

3.25 - 5.00%

1,,117,800

100,000

40,000

1,,L45,000

66,250
20,000

1L0,000

220,000

1,031,000

40000
694,000
161,000

757,000

1,65,600

6,000,000

550,000

$ (e2,600) $

(100,000)

(10,000)

(85,000)

(33,L25)
(s,000)

(11,000)

Q2,000)
(108,000)

(s,000)

(27,000)
(18,000)

(42,200)
(s,900)

(300,000)

(30,000)

1,025,200

30,000

1,060,000

33,125
15,000

99,000

198,000

923,000
35,000

667,000
143,000

71.4,800

159,700
5,700,000

520,000
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The Town receives subsidy assistance from the Massachusetts Water Pollution Abatement Trust (MWPAT).
Principal and interest on the outstanding bonds for MWPAT is subsidized over the liÉe of the bonds to assist the

Town in the repayment of this future debt. During fiscal year 2009, the Towrls subsidy totaled approximately
$59,000. Future subsidies total approximately $451,000. The amount of MWPAT bonds outstanding at |une 30,

2009, totaled fi1.,025,200.

Debt service requirements for principal and interest for enterprise fund bonds and notes payable in future fiscal

vears are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal

798,125 $
764,800

767,800

705,700

75'1.,800

719,900

718,200
716,600

72'1,,000

686,400
565,000
500,000

500,000
420,000

420,000

420,000
425,000

397,500

325,000

krterest Total

L,250,532
1,,189,573
'l_,159,422

'1,125,834

'1,094,750

'1,034,577

'1,003,246

970,396
938,326
873,359
725,812
637,588

61,6,866

518,050

50L,128

478,395
475,L06

430,098

338,325

452,407

424,773

39L,622

420,134

342,950

3't4,677
285,046

253,796

217,326

186,959
'1,60,812

137,588
116,866

98,050

81,128

58,395

50,106

32,598
13,325

Total............. $ 11,322,825 $ 4,052,736 fi 15,375,561
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The Town is subject to various debt limits by statute and may issue additional general obligation debt under the
normal debt limit. AtJune 30,2009, the Town had the following authorized and unissued debt:

Purpose Amount

Wind turbine $

Open space

Water Mains........
Electric substation...
Water....
Equipment.
Bridges..
Recreation. ....;....
DPW/computer...........
Riverwalk..
MBTA Grade Crossing.....
Town Hall Windows.....................

4,378,000

3,980,000
2,395,000
1,500,000

893,000

600,000
165,000
121,23't
'1,04,422

75,000

68,700

50,000

fi 1,4,330,353

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

During the fiscal year ended fune 30, 2009, the following changes occurred in long-term liabilities:

Balance

June 30,

2009* Increases Decreases

Balance

June 30,

2009

Current
Portion

G o a ernment øI Actioiti e s :

Bonds and notes payable
Unamortized premium......
Deferred loss on refunding.............

Bonds and notes payable, net..........

- $ (2,507,775)

- (294,218)
- 290,990

fi 30,987,375
't47,110

(1.45,4es)

30,988,990

1,599,340

1,1.42,656

g 2,516,875

147,110
(1.45,495)

2,51.8,490

114,266

Q,511,003)

Net OPEB obligation. . .. .

Compensated absences....,. 1,087,646

Tota1........... g 34,587,639

Bu sin e s s -typ e Actioiti e s :

Bonds and notes payable fi L2,217,650

Net OPEB obligation. . .. .

Compensated absences...... 172,062

Tota1..,,....... $ 12,389,712

* As restated and more fullv described in Note 15.

$ 1,,654,350 $ (2,511,003)

- $ (894,825)
'141,725

1.8,609

$ 33,730,986 fi 2,632,756

$ 11,322,825 $ 798,125
'1,4'1,,725

190,671. 19,067

1,599,340

55,010

The governmental activities long-term liabilities are generally liquidated by the general fund.

$ 160,334 $ (894,825) fi 11.,655,221 fi 817,192
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NOTE9-RISKFINANCING

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft ol damage to and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; and natural disasters for which the Town carries commercial insurance. The Town participates in
premium-based health care and workers' compensation plans for its employees. The amount of claim settlements
has not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the previous three fiscal years.

NOTE 10 - PENSION PLAN

PlønDescription -The Town contributes to the Essex Regional Retirement System (System), a cost-sharing
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Essex Regional Retirement Board.
Substantially all employees of the Town are members of the System, except for public school teachers and certain
administrators who are members of the Massachusetts Teachers Retirement System.

Chapter 32 of the MGL assigns authority to establish and amend benefit provisions of the plan. The System
provides retirement, disability and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Cost-of-living adjustments
granted between 1981 and 1997 and any increases in other benefits imposed by the Commonwealth's state law
during those years are borne by the Commonwealth and are deposited into the pension fund. Cost-of-living
adjustments granted after 1997 must be authorized by the Essex Regional Retirement Board and are borne by the
System. The System issues a publicly available report in accordance with guidelines established by the
Commonwealth's Public Employee Retirement Administration Commission. That report may be obtained by
contacting the System located at 36 Federal Street Salem, Massachusefts,01970.

Funding Policy - Chapter 32 of MGL governs the contributions of plan members and the Town. Plan members
are required to contribute to the System at rates ranging Íronl% to 11% of annual covered compensation. The
Town is required to pay into the System its share of the system-wide actuarial determined contribution that is
apportioned among the employers based on annual covered payroll. The Town s contributions to the System for
the fiscal years ended June 30, 2009,2008, and2007 were $1,680,007,91.,550,707, and9'1.,439,042, respectively,
which equaled its required contribution for each fiscal year.

NOTE 1.1. - MASSACHUSETTS TEACHERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Public school teachers and certain administrators are members of the Massachusetts Teachers Retirement System,
to which the Town does not contribute. Pension benefits and administrative expenses paid by the Teachers
Retirement Board are the legal responsibility of the Commonwealth. The amount of these on-behalf payments
totaled fi2,528,796 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, and, accordingly, are reported in the general fund as

intergovernmental revenues and education expenditures.

NOTE 12 - OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

PlønDescription -The Town provides health, life and dental insurance coverage for its retirees and their
survivors (hereinafter referred to as the "Plaî") as a single-employer defined benefit Other Post Employment
Benefit (OPEB) plan. Chapter 328 of the MGL assigns authority to establish and amend benefit provisions.
Changes to plan design and contribution rates must be accomplished through the collective bargaining process.
The Plan does not issue a stand alone financial report since there are no assets legally segregated for the sole
purpose of paying benefits under the Plan.
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The number of participants as of July 1.,2007, the latest actuarial valuation, is as follows:

Active employees
Retired employees.

Total 626

Eunding Policy -The contribution requirements of Plan members and the Town are established and may be
amended by the Town. The required health and life insurance contribution rates of Plan members and the Town
ate 50% and50%, respectively. Retirees are responsible for 100% oÍ the premiums related to dental insurance.
The Town currently contributes enough money to the Plan to satisfy current obligations on a pay-as-you-go basis.
The costs of administering the Plan are paid by the Town.

AnnuøI OPEB Cost ønilNet OPEB Obligøtion- The Town's annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on
the annual required contribution (ARC) of the employer, an actuarially determined amount that is calculated in
accordance with the parameters set forth in GASB Statement #45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if
paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial
liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components
of the Town's annual OPEB cost for the year, the actual amount contributed to the plan, and changes in the net
OPEB obligation:

Amount

Annual required contribution fi 2,290,951
Interest on net OPEB obligation...

Annual OPEB cost 2,290,951
(549,886)Contributions made

Increase in net OPEB obligation... '1,74'J.,065

Net OPEB obligation at beginning of year.......

Net OPEB obligation at end of year....... g -1,74.1.,065

Trend information regarding annual pension cos! the percentage of the annual pension cost contributed and the
net pension obligation is as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ending

Percentage
ofAOPEBC
Contributed

24.0%

434

192

Net
OPEB

Obligation

$ 1,741,065June 30, 2009*

*Transition year
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Eunded Støtus ønd Eunding Progress - The funded status of the Plan at July 1., 2007, the most recent actuarial
valuation, was as follows:

Actuarial
Valuation

Date

Actuarial
Value of
Assets

(A)

Valuation date:

Actuarial cost method:

Amortization method:

Remaining amortization period:

Interest discount rate:

Healthcare/ Medical cost trend rate:

Projected salary increases:

Actuarial
Accrued

Liability (AAL)
Projected Unit

Credit
(B)

Unfunded
AAL

(UAAL)
(B-A)

UAAL as a

Percentage

of Covered

Payroll
((B-A)/c)

985%

Covered

Payroll
(c)

07/01./07 $ - $ 20,162,942920,162,942 fi 20,463,394

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future
employment mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the
plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are
compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.

Methods ønil Assumptions - Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive
Plan (the Plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at
the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and Plan
members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to
reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the achrarial value of assets, consistent with the
long-term perspective of the calculations.

The significant methods and assumptions as of the latest actuarial valuation are as follows:

July 1,2007

Projected unit credit

Level dollar

30 years as of July 
'1,,2007

4.00%

Medical ranging fuom2.S% to 9.0% and dental ranging from 5.0% to 8.5%

4.50% peryear
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Allocøtion of AOPEBC - AOPEBC costs were allocated to the Town s functions as follows:

Governmental Activities:
General government
Finance..
Plarming and development..........
Public safety...
Education..
Public works........
Code enforcement........
Fluman services.
Library......

Total AOPEBC - governmental activities. . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Business-Type Activities:
Water..
Sewer...

'1,4,005

81,268
19,079

248,785
1,,58'1,,790

11,5,408
'1,0,826

'1,6,328

16,976

2,104,465

Electric.

52,39L
28,396

105,699

Total AOPEBC - business-type activities..... $ 186,486

NOTE 13 - COMMITMENTS

The Town has entered into, or is planning to enter into, contracts totaling approximately $14,000,000 for a wind
turbine, open space acquisition, water hfrastructure and various other governmental projects.

NOTE 14 - CONTINGENCIES

Various legal actions and claims are pending against the Town. Litigation is subject to many uncertainties, and
the outcome of individual litigated matters is not always predictable. Although the amount of liability, tf any, at

]une 30, 2009, cannot be ascertained, management beteves any resulting liability should not materially affect the
financial position of the Town at |une 30,2009.

The Town participates in a number of federal award programs. Although the grant programs have been audited
in accordance with the provisions of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 through June 30, 2009, these

programs are still subject to financial and compliance audits. The amount ú any, of expenditures which may be

disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time, although the Town expects such amounts,
tf any, to be immaterial.

NOTE L5 - PRrOR PERTOD ADJUSTMENT

The beginning net assets of the governmental activities, business-type activities and water enterprise fund have
been restated to reflect the reclassification of long-term debt (related to land acquisition) from governmental
activities to the water enterprise fund/business-type activities. As a result the beginning net assets of the
governmental activities, business-type activities and water enterprise fund have been restated from fi48,34L,461,

926,78'1,,771 andfi11.,664,190 to 948,561,46'1.,fi26,56'1.,171 andfi11.,M4,190, respectively.
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NOTE 16 - IMPLEMENTATION OF GASB PRONOUNCEMENTS

The Town implemented the following GASB pronouncements during fiscal year 2009:

Pensions. This pronouncement requires the recording of an OPEB liability that relates to the Town's
future lìability for current and future retirees and their spouses for benefits other than pensions, such as

health insurance. The statement is recorded prospectively in the first year of implementation. Details
relating to the Town's OPEB liability and its calculation are provided at Note 12.

implementation of this Statement had no impact on the financial statements.

Statement had no impact on the financial statements.

NOTE 17 - FUTURE IMPLEMENTATION OF GASB PRONOUCEMENTS

The GASB has issued the following statements:

implemented during fiscal year 2010. The Town is currentþ evaluating the impact this pronouncement
will have on the basic financial statements.

implemented during fiscal year 2010. The Town is currently evaluating the impact this pronouncement
will have on the basic financial statements.

implemented during fiscal year 2011. The Town is currently evaluating the effect that this Statement will
have on its basic financial statements.

These pronouncements will be implemented by their respective due dates.
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A summary of the significant accounting policies consistently applied in the preparation of the accompanying
financial statements f ollows :

L. Reporting Entity

The lpswich Municipal Light Department (the "Deparhnent") is a department of the Town of lpswich,
Massachusetts (the "Town") and is reported as an enterprise (proprietary) fund in the Town s basic financial
statements. The Department is governed by the Ipswich Municipal Light Commissioners (the "Commissioners")
who appoints a manager of municipal lighting who sha[ under the direction of the Commissioners, have full
charge of the operation and management of the Department.

2. Reguløtion, Røtes ønd Bøsis of Accounting

The Department is under the charge and control of the Commissioners in accordance with Chapter 164, Section 55
of the Massachusetts General Laws (MGL). Electric rates may be changed once every three months. Rate
schedules are filed with the Massachusetts Department of Public Utilities (DPU), formerly known as the
Department of Telecommunications and Energy. \Alhile the DPU exercises general supervisory authority over the
Department, rates are not subject to DPU approval. Pursuant to Chapter 164, Section 58 of the MGL, rates must
be set such that annual net earnings from operations do not exceed 8% of the cost of the utility plant after
repayment of operating expenses, interest on outstanding debÇ the requirements of any serial debt and
depreciation. Excess revenues are required to be refunded to the customers.

The Department uses the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under the
accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities
are incurred.

The Department applies all Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements and Accounting
Principles Board (APB) opinions issued on or before November 30,1989, unless those pronouncements conflict
with or contradict GASB pronouncements, in which case GASB prevaiJs.

3. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabitities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

4. Utility Plønt

The statutory provision for depreciation of the utility plant is computed on the straight-line method at 3% of cost
of plant in service at the beginning of the year, exclusive of land and land rights. Therefore, no depreciation is
taken in the year of department additions. MGL stipulates that the Department may change from the statutory
depreciation rate up to 5% only with the approval of the DPU. The Department has been granted such approval
and has used the rate of 5% since 2000.

Pursuant to MGL, cash is transferred to the Depreciation Fund in an amount equal to the annual provision for
depreciation. The Depreciation Fund may only be used for replacements, additions to the utility plant in service
and related debt service.

Costs related to issuance of bonds to finance utility plant have been capitalized and are being amortized over the
life of the bonds.
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5. Cøsh ønil CøshEquiaølents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Department considers all highly liquid debt instruments
purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

6. Reuenues

Revenues from the sale of electricity are recorded on the basis of bills rendered from monthly meter readings.
The revenues are based on rates established by the Departrrrenf which are applied to customers' consumption of
electricity.

7, Inaentory

Materials, supplies and fuel oil inventory are carried at cost, determined by the fust-iru first-out method.

8. Proaision for Payment to the Town of Ipszaich in Lieu of Tøxes

The Department contributed$265,652 to the Town of Ipswich in lieu of taxes. All contributions to the Town are
voted by the Commissioners.

9. Purchased Poraer Working Cøpitøl

Purchased power working capital is a deposit hetd by the Deparhrrenfs power supplier, Massachusetts
Municipal Wholesale Electric Company (MMWEC). A fixed amount of working capital based on the
Departmenfs annual power purchases is required to be held on deposit with MMWEC for the purpose of paying
the Departmenfs power obligations as they become due. Working capital on deposit with MMWEC is
replenished monthly. A credit for interest earned on deposits is applied to monthly billings and is recorded as

revenue. Working capital on deposit with MMWEC at June 30,2009 totaled fi2,437,337.

1.0. Deferred Chørges

The Departrnent has a fuel cost adjustment clause pursuant to which increased fuel costs (fuel costs in excess of
amounts recovered through base rates) are billable to customers. The Department records estimated unbilled fuel
adjustment charge revenue at the end of accounting periods. Unbilled fuel costs total $81.,995 at June 30,2009.

The Department has recorded a deferred charge related to one environmental remediation liability. This amount
totals $10,000 at June 30,2009 (see Note f .

NOTE B - DEPOSITS

The Departmenfs operating cash is deposited with the Town's Treasurer who commingles it with other Town
funds. The Town Treasurer maintains separate bank accounts for the Departmenls Depreciation Fund, Rate
g¡¿þilization Fund and Customer Deposits payable.

The municipal finance laws of the Commonwealth authorize the Town to invest temporarily idle cash in bank
term deposits and certificates of deposits, and treasury and agency obligations of the United States government
with maturities of one year or less; U.S. treasury or agency repurchase agreements with maturities of not more
than 90 days; money market accounts; and the state treasurer's invesbnent pool - the Massachusetts Municipal
Depository Trust (MMDT).
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Deposits - Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Town's deposits may not be
recovered. The Town does not have a policy for custodial credit risk of deposits. As of June 30,2009,92,686,288
of the Departunenfs bank balance was uninsured and uncollateralized and exposed to custodial credit risk.

NOTEC-CAPITALASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2009 is as follows:

Beginning

Balance Increases Decreases

Ending

Balance

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land........... $

Construction in progress....

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:

Production plant............

Tra¡smission plant............
Distribution plant.............
General plant........,...

Total capital assets being depreciated...

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Production plant............
Transmission plant...........
Distribution plant...........
General plant

Total accumulated depreciation. . .... .. . . .. .

22,976 $

847,613

-$
4,952,142

22,976

5,799,755

870,589 4,952,L42 5,822,731

4,898,309

399,439

1L,367,060

2,183,635

6L,992

529,812

225,504

(310,000)

(43,751)

4,960,301.

399,439

1L,586,872

2,365,388

18,848,443 817,308 (353,751) 19,312,000

(4,58L,01,6)

(170,762)

(7,134,924)

(1,509,408)

(56,336)

(42,73e)

(730,465)

(1L6,441)

310,000

43,751

(4,637,352)

(213,501)

(7,555,389)

(1,582,0e8)

(13,396,110) (e45,e81)

(128,673)

353,751 (13,e88,340)

Total capital assets being depreciated, net... 5,323,660

6,322,922 $ 4,8%,469 $ - $ 11,,1,46,391,

NOTE D - DEPRECIATION FUND

Pursuant to the provisions of the MGL, cash in an amount equivalent to the annual depreciation expense is
transferred from unrestricted funds to the depreciation fund. Interest earned on the balance of the fund must also
remain in the fund. Such cash may be used for the cost of planf nuclear decommissioning costs, the costs of
contractual commitments, and deferred costs related to such commitments which the Commissioners determine
are above market value.

5,452,333
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On December 15,2003, the Commissioners voted to transfer funds, in an amount not to exceed $625,000 during
the fiscal years 2003 through 2006, fuom the rate stabilization fund to the depreciation fund. The entire $625,000
was transferred during the year ended December 37,2004. These funds were used for upgrades to the utility
plant. The transfer was treated as an internal loan that must be repaid over a 10 year period that began in fiscal
year 2005. Interest on the loan is being calculated based on the interest rate of the rate stabilization fund
investment. The interest on the loan is reclassified between the operating funds and rate stabi.lization funds and
therefore is not expensed by the Department. The outstanding principal balance of this internal loan totaled
$343,750 at June 30, 2009.

On January 24,2005, the Commissioners voted to transfer $715,000 from the rate stabilization fund to the
depreciation fund. These funds were used for upgrades to the utility plant. The transfer was treated as an
internal loan that must be repaid over a 10 year period that began in fiscal year 2007. Interest on the loan is being
calculated based on the interest rate of the rate 5¡¿þi.lization fund investment. The interest on the loan is
reclassified between the operating funds and rate stabilization funds and therefore is not expensed by the
Department. The outstanding principal balance of this internal loan totaled 9464,750 at June 30, 2009 .

NOTE E - RATE STABILIZATION FUND

The Department has established a stabilization fund for the purpose of minimizing exposure to rate fluctuations.
Additionally, the fund may be used to help the Department maintain a competitive position in the markeþlace or
for other unexpected costs. The balance of the fund at June 30,2009 was 6L,600,778 and is reported as restricted
net assets in the Statement of Fund Net Assets. This amount will differ from the cash balance of the rate
stabilization fund as a result of the loans described in Note D.

NOTEF-PENSIONPLAN

Employees of the Department participate in the Essex Regional Retirement System (the System) through the
Town. The Town allocates a portion of its obligation to the Department based on the relative number of
participants and the amount of payroll. Total contributions by the Department to the System totaled
approximately $139,000 for the year ended June 30, 2009, which represents approximately 8.4% of the System's
assessment to the Town.

NOTE G - SHORT-TERM FINANCING

Details related to the short-term debt activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 are as follows:

Origination Maturity Interest Balance at Balance at

Type Descrþtion Date Date Rate (%) June 30,2008 Increases Decreases June 30, 2009

BAN WindTurbine................. 6/29/09 12/16/09 1.25 $ - $ 100,000 $ - $ 100,000

NOTEH-LONG-TERMDEBT

In November 1999 and June 2008, the Town issued General Obligation Bonds in the amounts of $900,000 and
$6,000,000, respectively, for the exclusive benefit of the Department.
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Details relating to the outstanding indebtedness at June 30,2009 are as follows:

Project

Outstanding
Interest atJune 30,

Rate % 2008 Issued

Outstanding
atJune 3Q

Redeemed 2009

ElecÍicMeteringSystem...............,.. 4.70% $ 100,000 $ -
Elechic Sub Station and System Improvements.. ........ 3.25% - 4.1,% 6,000,000

Total Bonds Payable. . .. . .. . .. . . . 6,100,000 $

$ (100,000) $
(300,000)

$ (4oo,ooo) $

5,700,000

5,700000

Debt service requfuements for principal and interest for the Departmenfs bonds payable in future fiscal years are
as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal lnterest Total

300,000 $
300,000

300,000

300,000

300,000

300,000

300,000

300,000

300,000

300,000

300,000

300,000

300,000

300,000

300,000

300,000

300,000

300,000

300,000

2019

2020

222,900

213,'1,50

203,400

194,400

183,900

173,400
'1,62,900

150,900

135,900

120,900

108,900

96,900

84,900

72,900

60,900

48,900

36,900

24,600

12,300

522,900

513,150

503,400

494,400

483,900

473,400

462,900

450,900

435,900

420,900

408,900

396,900

3U,900
372,900

360,900

348,900

336,900

324,600

312,300

2021................
2022...............
2023....

2024...............
2025...............
2026...............
2027...............
2028...............

Total.. $ 5,700,000 $ 2,308,950 $ 8,009,950
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements - Municipal Light Department For the fiscal year Ended ]une 30, 2009

NOTE I - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Department pays the Town annually an amount equal to one-fourth of one cent of total kilowatts hours billed
in lieu of taxes. In addition to the in-lieu of tax payment the Department subsidizes the cost of street lighting to
the Town. Additionally, the Town allocates expenses to the Department for various services during the year and
the Departrnent provides services and materials to the Town without reimbursement. Amounts included in
expenses for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 under these arrangements are as follows:

Paymentinlieuoftaxes. ............. $
Town salaries paid by department............
Subsidized street lighting...... .

Non-reimbursed services and materials provided to the Town.......

265,652

62,776

58,808

26,981,

Total

The Department bills Town departments for electric light usage. The amount included in revenue under this
arrangementwas$699,953 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. Accounts receivable from these departments
totaled fi26,847 atJune 30,2009.

The Ipswich Water Department (the "Water Deparhnent") shares office space in the Departmenfs building.
Costs are not billed to the Water Department. Management has determined that the associated expenses are not
significant and, therefote, has not assessed the Water Department a fee for such services.

NOTE I - ENVIRONMENTAL REMEDIATION

The Department is required to clean uphazardous materials located at the Ipswich Power Plant (the "Plan().
The clean up is in response to the presence of petroleum related contaminants in soil and groundwater beneath
the Plant building and the surrounding property.

Since January 2008, subsurface investigations including soil sampling and groundwater monitoring have been
used to identify the extent of the contamination and develop a long-term approach resulting in no additional
response actions.

In the prior year, the total estimated clean up cost (as determined by an independent environmental consultant)
was estimated to be between $134,000 and $196,000. The Department had recorded a liability of $200,000 to
reflect this estimate.

The estimated costs were reevaluated (by an independent environmental consultant) at June 30,2009, and current
estimates range between $98,000 and $154,000. The Department has recorded a tiability of $160,000 to reflect this
estimate. As of June 30,2009, $150,000 has been billed to customers and $10,000 has been recorded as a deferred
charge.

NOTE K - MMWEC PARTICIPATION

The Towrç acting through the Department, is a Participant in certain Projects of the Massachusetts Municipal
Wholesale Electric Company (MMWEC).
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements - Municipal Light Department For the fiscal year Ended June 30, 2009

MMWEC is a public corporation and a political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, created as a
means to develop a bulk power supply for its Members and other utilities. MMWEC is authorized to construcÇ
own or purchase ownership interests in, and to issue revenue bonds to finance, electric facilities (Projects).
MMWEC has acquired ownership interests in electric facilities operated by other entities and also owns and
operates its own electric facilities. MMWEC sells all of the capability (Project Capabitity) of each of its Projects to
its Members and other utilities (Project Participants) under Power Sales Agreements (PSAs). Among other things,
the PSAs require each Project Participant to pay its pro ratø share of MMWEC's costs related to the Project, which
costs include debt service on the revenue bonds issued by MMWEC to finance the Project, plus 10% of MMWEC's
debt service to be paid into a Reserve and Contingency Fund. In addition, should a Project Participant fail to
make any payment when due, other Project Participants of that Project may be required to increase (step-up) their
payments and correspondingly their Participants' share of that Projecfs Project Capability to an additional
amount not to exceed 25% of their original Participants' share of that Projectls Project Capability. Project
Participants have covenanted to fix, revise, and collect rates at least sufficient to meet their obligations under the
PSAs.

The Department has entered into PSAs and Power Purchase Agreements (PPAs) with MMWEC. Under both the
PSAs and PPAs, the Department is required to make certain payments to MMWEC payable solely from
Department revenues. Under the PSAs, each Participant is unconditionally obligated to make payments due to
MMWEC whether or not the Project(s) is completed or operating and notwithstanding the suspension or
interruption of the ouþut of the Project(s).

NOTE L - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

MMWEC has jssued separate issues of bonds for each of its eight Projects, which are payable solely from, and
secured solely by, the revenues derived from the Project to which the bonds relate, plus available funds pledged
under MMWEC's Amended and Restated General Bond Resolution (GBR) with respect to the bonds of that
Project. The MMWEC revenues derived from each Project are used solely to provide for the payment of the
bonds of any bond issue relating to such Project and to pay MMWEC's cost of owning and operating such Project
and are not used to provide for the payment of the bonds of any bond issue relating to any other Project.

MMWEC operates the Stony Brook Intermediate Project and the Stony Brook Peaking Project, both fossil-fueled
power plants. MMWEC has a3.7% interest in the W.F. Wyman Unit No. 4 plant, which is operated and owned
by its majorit¡r owner, FPL Energy Wyman fV, LLC, an indirect subsidiary of NextEra Energy Resources LLC
(formerly FPL Energy LLC), and a 4.8% ownership interest in the Millstone Unit 3 nuclear uni! operated by
Dominion Nuclear Connecticut Inc. (DNCI), the majority owner and an indirect subsidiary of Dominion
Resoutces, Inc. DNCI also owns and operates Millstone Unit 2 nuclear unit. The operating license for Millstone
Unit 3 nuclear unit extends to Novembet 25,2045.

A substantial portion of MMWEC's plant investment and financing program ts an11.6% ownership interest in the
Seabrook Station nuclear generating unit operated by NextEra Energy Seabrook, LLC (NextEra Seabrook)
(formerly FPL Energy Seabrook LLC), the majority owner and an indirect subsidiary of NextEra Energy
Resources LLC (formerly FPL Energ'y LLC). The operating license for Seabrook Station extends to March, 2030.
NextEra Seabrook has stated its intention to request an extension of the Seabrook Station operating license
beyond March 2030.

Pursuant to the PSAs the MMWEC Seabrook and Millstone Project Participants are liable for their proportionate
share of the costs associated with decommissioning the plants, which costs are being funded through monthly
Project billings. Also the Project Participants are liable for their proportionate share of the uninsured costs of a
nuclear incident that might be imposed under the Price-Anderson Act (Act). Originally enacted ir.1957, the Act
has been renewed several times. In July 2005, as part of the Energy Policy Act of 2005, Congress extended the Act
until the end of 2025.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements - Municipal Light Department For the fiscal year Ended June 30, 2009

MMWEC is involved in various legal actions. In the opinion of MMWEC managemen! the outcome of such
litigation or claims will not have a material adverse effect on the financial position of MMWEC.

After the July 1, 2009 principal payment total capital expenditures for MMWECs Projects amounted to
$'1,553,974,000, of which 912,436,000 represents the amount associated with the Departrnenls share of Project
Capability of the Projects in which it participates, although such amount is not allocated to the Department.
MMWEC's debt outstanding for the Projects includes Power Supply System Revenue Bonds totaling fi570,245,000,
of which $4,888,000 is associated with the Departmenf s share of Project Capability of the Projects in which it
participates, although such amount is not allocated to the Department. After the July L,2009 principal payment
MMWEC's total future debt service requirement on outstanding bonds issued for the Projects is6614,973,000, of
which $5,133,000 is anticipated to be billed to the Department in the future.

The estimated aggregate amount of the Departmenfs required payments under the PSAs and PPAs, exclusive of
tlre Reserve and Contingency Fund billings, to MMWEC at June 30,2009 and estimated for future years is shown
below:

For the Fiscal Years Ending |une 30, Amount

2010... 5 zzt,000
2011..... 7M,000
2012....... 740,000
2013... 747,000
20'14.......... 671.,000

2015 to 2019.......... 1,460,000

In additioru the Department is required to pay to MMWEC, through PSAs, its share of the Operation and
Maintenance (O&M) costs of the Projects in which it participates. The Deparbnenfs total O&M costs including
debt service under the PSAs totaled 9'1.,634,000 and $1,543,000 for the years ended June 30, 2009 and2008,
respectively.
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GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGETAND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED

REVENUES
Real estate and personal property taxes............... $ _

Moto¡ vehicle and other excise taxes...............

Prior Yea¡
Encumbrances
and Continuing Original
App¡opriations Budget

Supplemental Final
App¡opriations Budget

100,000 $ 26,890,236
_ 1.,683,358

$ 26,790,236 S

7,683,358
Tax and utility liens
Payments in lieu of taxes

Charges for seroices. ....... ... .. . . .

Intergovernmental ...... ......... . . .

Penalties and intetest on taxes....
Licenses and permits. . .. . . . . . . .......
Fines and forfeitures... . . ...
Departmental. . ..

Investnent income.....................
Other

TOTALREVENUES.

EXPENDITURES

Current:
Generalgovermrent...............,.. .. g,215
Fina¡ce........... 77,74g
Planning and development.... . 1,749
Public safety..... 79,972
Education.,...... 94,527
Public works.... . 706.726
Code enforcement......... ... . . .....
Human services .. 300
I ilrren,

Employee benefits....................
P¡operty and liabiJity insuraace...... ........ 10,000
Miscellaneous. . .

State and county charges...........
Debt service:

Principal..........
Interest.......,.... 77i.6g1r

TOTAL EXPENDITURES. 365,778

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES,

36,670,373 L00,000 36,770,373

387,626
38,000

6,4't6,277
134,L47
531,000
54,000

327,465
225,000

83,270

287,762
988,906
243,873

3,960,7\6
19,907,"139

3,779,295
41.6,920

366,880
579,250

L,703,816
274,961
114,667

863,057

2,535,173

1,45&005

37,353,760

387,626

38,000

6,41.6,271

134,1.47

531,000

54,000

327,465
225,000

83,270

3,113 293,090
2,875 1,002,929

- 245,622

31,674 4,071,762

56,375 20,057,981
152,000 4,037,421

- 4L6,920
245 367,425

- 519,250

- 1.,703,876
_ 224,967
_ 174,667

- 863,057

2,535,713
'J.,571,686

246,))) 37,965,700

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

(36s,718) (683,384 046,222\ (1.,1esþ2n

198,068 82,564 280,632Transfers in.
Sale of capital assets.

Tra¡sfe¡s out.

TOTAL OTFIER FINANCING SOURCFS (USTS).. 198,068

(48s,319)NET CHANGE IN FI]ND BALANCE (36s,718)

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,307,304 2,307,304

FUNDBALANCEATENDOFYEAR................ ......... $ 7,947,586 $ 1,821,98s $

S€e notes to required supplementary information.

(10,000) (10,000)

72,564 270,632

(73,6s8) (924,6e5)

2,307,304 2,307,304

2,233,646 5 1,382,609
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g 27,0n,8s2 $
7,696,749

63,759

406,020

25,752

5,996,527

110,477

3U,975
46,502

M0,545

727,750
112,900

36,433,948

289,267

977,872
21.6,798

3,973,725

19,453,836

1510,318
387,368
356,969

574,280

7,703,816
274,356

99,523
858,656

2,524,669

1,46L,545

Actual

36,542,378

280,632

330,000

(10000)

600,632

27,023,852 $
7,696,1,49

63,159
406,020
25,752

5,996,527
770,417

384,975
46,502

440,545

127,150
112,900

and Continuing and Continuing
Appropriations Appropriations

-$

Current Year
Encumb¡ances

Actual ard
Encumbrances Variance

Positive/
(Negative)

133,676
12,791

63,7s9
78,394

(12,248)

(41e,7M)
(n,730)

(746,02s)
(7,498)

111080
(e7,8s0)

29,630

3,499
22,782

8,838

30,982
499,628

1.5,663

29,757

7,456
41970

72,74
4,421.

70,M
10,110

659,494

36,433,948 (336,42s)

324
2,935

20,586
7,055

"t04,517

571.,M0

395
3,000

,ro qo1

980,747

236,784
3,980,780

19,558,353

4,02L,758

387,763
359,969

574,280
7,703,816

224,961.

102,523

858,636

2,524,669

L,56L,576

10,605

3,000

100,031

763,888 37,306,206

(108,370) (763,888) (872,2s8) 323,06e

280,632

330,000 330000
(10,000)

600,632 330,000

653,069492,262

2,307,304

(763,888)

2,307,304

Q71,626)

L307,304

5 L799,566 S 7,543,476 $ 2,035,678 S

Toun of Ipswich, Massachusetts

653,069

Require il Sttpp lementøry Info rmation



PENSION PLAN SCHEDULES

The following schedules provide information related to the System as a whole, for which the Town is one
participating employer:

SCHEDULES OF FUNDING PROGRESS (SYSTEM)

Actuarial UAAL as a
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage

Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (A) (B) (B-A) (A/B) (c) ((B-A)/c)

01/01/99 fi 180,034,700 $ 268,386,000 $ 88,351,300 67:t% fi 89,645,300 98.6%

01/01/00 190,363,700 253,847,100 63,493,400 75.0% 69,525,900 91.3%

01/01/02 219,346,198 297,390,715 69,0M,517 76.0% 95,005,339 81..2%

01/01/04 229,952,971 333,396,222 103,543,25]. 6g.9% 93,404,002 110.9%

01,/01,/06 261.,327,047 375,593,562 114,266,515 69.6% 98,64't,094 115.8%

01,/01,/08 301,420,965 M5,171,554 143,750,589 67.7% 111,726,856 128.7%

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS (SYSTEM)

Annually
Required Percentage of

Year Ended Contributions ARC
December 31 (ARC) Contributed (%)

2003 fi 11.,794,952 100

2004 12,648,657 100

2005 '1,4,609,198 100

2006 15,274,191 100

2007 16,294,571 100

2008 76,995,636 100

The following schedule provides information related to the Town's portion of the System's ARC:

TOWN SHARE OF SYSTEM ARC

Fiscal Year
Percentage of Town ARC

ARC as a Percentage of
Ended ARC Contributed (%) System ARC (%)

2004 $ 1,264,811 100

2005 1.,'t69,5'1.6 100

2006 1,380,330 100

2007 1,439,042 100

2008 1,550,707 100

2009 1,,680,007 100

10.7%

9.2%

9.4%

9.4%

9.5To

9.9%
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Notes to Required Supplementary Information For the Fiscal Year Ended Tune 30,2009

NOTE A - BUDGETARY - GAAP RECONCILIATION

For budgetary financial reporting purposes, the Uniform Massachusetts Accounting System basis of accountinø
(established by the Commonwealth) is followed, which differs from the GAAP basis of accounting. A
reconciliation of budgetary-basis to GAAP-basis results for the general fund for the fiscal year ended June 30,

2009, ts presented below:

Other
Financing

Revenues Expenditures Sources (Uses)

Budgetary basis as reported on the schedule of
revenues/ expenditures and changes in fund
balance - budget and actual. g 36,433,948 fi 37,306,206 g 600,632

Adjusbnents
To record MTRS on-behalf payments... 2,528,796 2,528,796
To reclassify water debt service payments... (17,515) (17,515)

GAAP basis as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances.... fi 38,962,744 g 39,053,599 fi 583,117

NOTEB-PENSIONPLAN

Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation is as follows:

Valuation date: Tanuarv 1,2008

Actuarial cost method: Entry Age Normal Cost Method

Amortization method: Approximate level percent of payroll based on 45% annual increases;
except level dollar for ERI liability for certain units

Remaining amortization period: As of July 1.,2008, schedules as selected by the units for 2002 ERI
Iiability, schedules as selected by units for 2003 ERI tiability and 20 years
for remaining unfunded liability

Asset valuation method: A preliminary actuarial value is first determined by taking the actuarial
value of assets at the beginning of the year and adding assumed
investment earnings (at the assumed actuarial rate of return) and the net
new money during the year (contributions less benefit payments and
administrative expenses). Twenty percent of the difference between the
marketvalue of assets and the preliminary actuarial value is added to
the preliminary actuarial value. In order that the actuarial value not
differ to significantly from the market value of assets, the final actuarial
value of assets much be within 20% of the market value of assets.
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Notes to Required Supplementary Information For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009

Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of refurn: 8.50%

Projected salary increases: 5.00%

Cost of living adjustments: 3.00% of first $12,000 of retirement income
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MUNICIPAL LIGTIT ENTERPRISE FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF FIIND NET ASSETS

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cashandcashequivalents....... ....... S
Restricted cash and cash equivalents... ....
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts:

User charges..
Prepaid expenses.
Deferred charges.
Purchased power

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:

working capital
Inventory........

1 101 aOE

663,651

1.,451.,830

553,667

9t,995
2437,337

763.079

871,447

5,932,733

1.,926,383

573,754

762750
2,437,337

769,285

Restricted cash and investments.
Capital assets not being depreciated.
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation.

Total noncurrent assets

6,554,954 1.2,073,089

868,019 671,370
5,822,731, 870,589
5,323,660 5,452,333

12014,410

18,569,364

6,994,292

3,027,304

79,067,381.

2,6'25,177

27,078

334,668

20,000

8,593

400,000

3,475,5t6

50,275

396,000

/ /,c3z
5,700,000

Total assets.

LIABILITIES
Current liabiüties:

Warrants payable
Accrued payroll,.
Othe¡ liabilities.

t,468,434
38,361,

1,093,3r3
1.8,575

8,627

100,000

300,000

81.,741

160,000

80,329

77,588
5,400,000

Accrued interest
Compensated absences...
Short-term notes payable
Long-term bonds and notes payable

Total current liabilities.

Noncur¡ent lia bilities:
Liabilities due depositors.
Environmental remediation.
Net OPEB obligation..
Compensated absences
Long-term bonds and notes payable

To tal noncurrent liabilities.

Total liabilities

FUND NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

5,799,658 6,223,607

8,826,962 9,639,1,23

5,778,9005,920,563

r,600,778 1.,563,59s

89,479 376,775
2,731.,582 7,708,988

9,742,402 g 9,428,258

Rest¡icted for:
Rate stab'ili?ation
Capital (Depreciation fund). .

Unrest¡icted.

Totalfundnetassets........ ........... S

Town of lpswich, Massøchusetts 74 Ailditionnl Inf onn ati o r t



MUNICIPAL LIGHT ENTERPRISE FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED IUNE 30,2009

2009 2008
OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for services.
Other.........

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES.....

OPERATING EXPENSES

Cost of service and administration. . . . . . . . . . . . .

Depreciation

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES...............

OPERATTNG TNCOME (LOSS)...

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income..
Interest expense....,.

TOTAL NONOPERATTNG REVENUES (EXPENSES), NET. . . . . . . . .

CHANGE IN FUND NET ASSETS...............

FUND NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR...

FUND NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR.,

13,863,590 15,219,546

250,904 105,599

175,793 115,453
(112,553) (15,199)

63,240 '1,00,254

1.4,092,598 $
21,996

15,181,926

142,218

1,4,11,4,494 15,324,lM

12,917,609

945,981

1,4,307,046

911,500

3'1,4,1M

9,428,258

205,952

9,222,406

9,742,402 $ 9,429,259
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MUNICIPAL LIGHT ENTERPRISE FUND
COMPARATTVE STATEMENTS OF SALES OF ELECTRICITY

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED IUNE 30, 2OO9

Residential.

2009 2008
SALES OF ELECTRICITY

6,294,583

742,126

6,326,328

634,313

29,608

65,640

6,789,029

788,712

6,836,119

673,886

28,540

65,640

'1,4,092,598 fi 15,18'1.,926
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MUNICIPAL LIGHT ENTERPRISE FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF COST OF SERVICE AND ADMINISTRATION

FOR THE FTSCAL YEAR ENDED IUNE 30, 2009

20082009

Power Production Expenses

Purchased Power..........
Other Power Expenses......

Total Power Production Expenses......

Distribution Expenses

Station Expenses......
Customer Installation Expenses......
Miscellaneous Distribution Expense. ......
Maintenance of Overhead Lines...........
Maintenance of Street Lights and Signal Systems.

Administrative and General Salaries......
Office Supplies and Expenses................
Outside Services.......
Properfy and General Insurance.....
Employees' Pensions and Benefits..
Miscellaneous General Expense.......

Total Administrative and General Expenses.. . . ..

TOTAL OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSES.

fi 10,427,605
467,575

fi 1't,938,342

520,390

10,889,180

1,803

25,084
165,745

582,001

4,185

12,458,732

15,057

43,254

125,626

564,785

6,945

Total Distribution Expenses 778,818

Customer Account Expenses

Customer Records and Collection 134,070

25,822Uncollectible Accounts

Total Customer Account Expenses......... 159,892

Administrative and General Expenses

Payments in lieu of taxes............

755,667

't47,215

33,939

265,652

308,056

79,912
110,211.

66,680
211,848

47,360

197,754

270,700

261.,872

86,502

7't,571

65,792

118,267

36,789

1,089,719

$ 12,917,609

911,493

fi 14,307,046
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